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Mission Statement
To be the principal and preferred supplier of premium grade crocodilian skins to the luxury brand houses of the world

Corporate Information
DIRECTORATE & MANAGEMENT

BOARD
The primary responsibility of the Board is to discharge its fiduciary responsibility to the shareholders and the Group. The Board 
is accordingly, the highest policy organ of the Group and sets its strategy. Meeting quarterly, the Board receives and acts on key 
information pertaining to the operations of Padenga.

COMPOSITION
The Board consists of three executive directors and three non-executive directors, comprising a cross-section of professionals and 
major shareholder representatives.

The non-executive directors of Padenga comprise individuals with proven track records and a wide range of different skills and 
experience, which they employ for the Group’s benefit, and who also provide crucial independence and guidance in the Group’s 
strategic decision making processes and corporate governance practices.
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Corporate Information (continued)
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & MANAGEMENT
The full names and positions of the Directors of Padenga as at 31st December 2016 are set out below:

DIRECTORS: POSITION HELD:
Alexander Kenneth Calder Non-Executive Chairman
Gary John Sharp   Chief Executive Officer
Oliver Tendai Kamundimu Chief Financial Officer
Michael John Fowler Executive Director
Annie Mutsa Mazvita Madzara Non-Executive Director
Thembinkosi Nkosana Sibanda Non-Executive Director
(All Directors appointed November 2010)

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT POSITION HELD:
Gary John Sharp    Chief Executive Officer
Oliver Tendai Kamundimu Chief Financial Officer
Michael John Fowler  Executive Director
Charles Boddy  Operations Executive
James Watson   Administration Executive
Jimmyson Kazangarare    General Manager Kariba Crocodile Farm
Prince Chapeyama   General Manager Nyanyana Crocodile Farm
Pierre Steyn General Manager Ume Crocodile Farm
Jeremiah Hunzwi Abattoir Manager

COMPANY SECRETARY AND REGISTERED OFFICE: TRANSFER SECRETARIES:
Andrew Lorimer Corpserve Share Transfer Secretaries
121 Borrowdale Road 2nd Floor ZB Centre
Gunhill Corner First Street/Kwame Nkrumah Avenue
Harare Harare

P O Box HG 633, Highlands  P O Box 2208
Harare Harare
Zimbabwe Zimbabwe

AUDITORS: LEGAL ADVISORS:
Ernst & Young Dube, Manikai & Hwacha
Chartered Accountants (Zimbabwe) Commercial Law Chambers
Angwa City 6th Floor Goldbridge Eastgate Complex
Corner Julius Nyerere/Kwame Nkrumah Avenue Corner Sam Nujoma/Robert Mugabe Avenue

P O Box 702 P O Box 10400
Harare Harare
Zimbabwe Zimbabwe

PRINCIPAL BANKERS: PRINCIPAL BANKERS: PRINCIPAL BANKERS:
CBZ Bank Limited Standard Chartered Bank Zimbabwe Limited Central African Building Society
Union House 1st Floor, Africa Unity Square Building Northend Close, Northridge
60 Kwame Nkrumah Avenue Nelson Mandela Avenue Park 
Harare Harare Harare
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Financial Highlights

           2016 2015  

 US$              US$

Group Summary

Revenue 31 272 712 27 491 537

Operating profit before depreciation, impairment and amortisation 12 615 760 9 985 704

Profit before taxation 11 040 379 9 950 208

Profit attributable to shareholders 8 948 240 7 255 522

Cash generated from operating activities 4 418 998 13 662 136

Capital expenditure 4 284 708 2 377 814

Net Assets 53 345 179 46 943 602

Share performance  

Basic earnings per share (cents) 1.65 1.34

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 1.65 1.34

Dividend cover (times) 4.0 4.6

Dividends declared and paid during the year per share (cents) 0.41 0.29

Market price per share (cents) 16.00 7.78

Market capitalisation (US$) 86 654 950 42 135 970

Number of shares in issue at reporting date 541 593 440 541 593 440
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FINANCIAL

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The group once again achieved excellent results which were 
a consequence of surpassing the targeted crocodile skin sales 
volumes without compromising the premium quality grades 
required by the market, coupled with astute management of 
expenses.

The group recorded an operating profit before depreciation, 
amortisation, impairment and fair valuation adjustments 
of $12,615,760 ($9,985,704 – FY15) from turnover of 
$31,272,712 in the twelve months to December 2016. This 
compared to turnover of $27,491,537 for the prior period 
to December 2015. The group benefited from an export 
incentive of $1,393,460. Profit before tax increased by 11% 
over prior year to $11,040,379 ($9,950,208 – FY15). 

Cash generated from operating activities was down from 
$13,662,136 for FY15 to $4,418,998 in FY16. This decrease 
in cash generation was a function of an increase in debtors of 
$8,071,300 and an increase in biological assets excluding fair 
value adjustments of $793,672. The increase in debtors was a 
function of culling into Q4 and shipping the skins just before 
year end. 

CROCODILE OPERATION

The Zimbabwe crocodile operation, which accounts for 
88% of the group’s turnover, produced yet another set of 
outstanding results. Turnover increased by 7% to $27,527,638 
from $25,748,883 recorded in the prior period to December 
2015. The 47,909 contract skins sold in FY16 represented 
an increase of 4% over the volume in the previous period. 
Operating profit and profit before tax increased by 26% and 
10% respectively to $12,931,385 and $12,620,546. 

ALLIGATOR OPERATION

A strong operational performance in the United States 
Alligator operation was negated by softening prices for 
watchband size skins and the fact that 38% of the volumes 
sold in the period were the last of the skin stocks damaged 
by disruptions that occurred in prior periods and previously 
reported on. Although disappointing, the results were in line 
with expectations. The unit recorded turnover of $3,745,074, 
this being an increase of 155% against prior year ($1,742,654 
– FY15). Volumes were up 143% against prior period (20,835 
skins compared to 8,586 skins). Of the total skins sold 7,994 
were low quality skins harvested at the end of the prior year. 

Chairman’s Statement 
The unit recorded an operating loss of $614,841 and a loss 
before tax of $1,675,835 compared to an operating loss of 
$236,866 and a loss before tax of $346,782 for the prior year. 

The group increased its shareholding in Lone Star Alligator 
Farms from 66.7% to 68.6%.

OPERATIONS

CROCODILE OPERATION

In the crocodile operation 47,806 crocodiles were culled in the 
period under review which was an increase of 4% compared to 
both budget and prior period volumes. The skin quality grade 
achieved was consistent with prior period; 96% 1st Grade in  
2015 and 95% in the period under review. Average skin size 
of 34.2cms was consistent with our customer’s requirements, 
this being 3% down on that achieved in the prior year. The 
size distribution produced varies slightly from year to year 
to meet market dynamics. We closed the period with a total 
of 150,172 grower crocodiles on the ground compared to 
161,572 at the end of FY15. The total number of crocodiles 
on the ground was deliberately reduced to achieve a sustained 
annual production of 46,000 skins. Forty new grower pens 
were constructed in the period (twenty at Nyanyana Farm 
and twenty at Ume Farm) to facilitate the earlier movement 
of yearlings from hatchling pens in spring each year. This 
initiative will further reduce stocking densities as part of an 
ongoing strategy to both enhance animal welfare & to improve 
skin quality. A 215kWp solar energy plant was commissioned 
at Ume farm that services the majority of the total energy 
requirements of the farm during daylight hours. This not only 
provides material cost savings but reinforces the company’s 
commitment to sustainability through the application of 
alternative and renewable energy solutions.

The demand from Europe for premium crocodile meat 
cuts remained low during the period and export prices were 
depressed as a consequence. There were no meat sales to the 
Asian market and this market has effectively closed. Total 
meat volumes sold decreased by 24% to 220 tonnes from 290 
tonnes (FY15). The sales mix shifted towards lower value cuts 
resulting in average prices received reducing by 1%. Overall, 
meat turnover decreased by 25% over prior year. 

ALLIGATOR OPERATION

The past two years have been marred by the disruptions to the 
business that occurred in 2014. The last stock impacted by 
those activities was sold in the year under review. In contrast, 
the yearling animals sold as watchband size skins in FY16 grew 
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out exceptionally well and the skin grades obtained on this 
stock were fully consistent with expectations. Six additional 
production barns were constructed in the year under review 
thereby doubling the production capacity. Additional 
biosecurity and security measures were implemented along 
with increased water supply, water storage and water heating 
facilities. These developments were consistent with the strategy 
to shift from the production of only watchband size skins to 
one which produces predominantly medium size skins. This 
strategy not only commands better prices and margins, but is 
less sensitive to fluctuations in hatchling purchase prices and 
watchband skin sales prices. The demand for good quality 
medium size alligator skins is strong and prices have remained 
firm. Directors and management are confident on the future 
of this business and are aggressively pursuing its strategy. 

PROSPECTS

The Zimbabwe operation is expected to sell 46,000 premium 
quality skins in 2017. Demand for top quality skins remains 
steady and prices are expected to hold. We expect this operation 
to post another good result. In the Alligator operation, we will 
not have any medium size skins for sale as these are grown 
over a two-year period. The operation will post an improved 
result in FY17 and we anticipate it will return to profitability 
in FY18. Overall the group is anticipating producing another 
set of outstanding results.

DIVIDEND

After considering its cash reserves against future working 

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

capital and capital expenditure requirements, the board has 
elected to increase its dividend payout ratio. The Board has 
declared a final dividend of 0.83 US cents per share, payable in 
respect of all the ordinary shares of the Company. This dividend 
is in respect of the financial year ending 31st December 
2016 and will be payable in full to all the shareholders of the 
Company registered at the close of business on Thursday 13th 
April 2017. The payment of this dividend will take place on 
or about Friday the 28th of April 2017. The shares of the 
Company will be traded cum – dividend on the Zimbabwe 
Stock Exchange up to the market day of Friday 7th April 2017 
and ex – dividend as from Monday 10th April 2017. This 
dividend represents a cash dividend cover of two times.

APPRECIATION 

Despite the uncertain and challenging economic environment 
obtaining in our operational areas the executive directors, 
management and staff have, once again, produced a very 
commendable set of financial and operational results. I 
congratulate them. My thanks again to the non - executive 
directors for their team – work and strong oversight during 
this financial year.

A K Calder 
Chairman
17 March 2017
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The following statement sets out the governance framework 
the Board has adopted at Padenga and highlights the work 
undertaken by the Board and its Committees during the 
financial year.

APPROACH TO GOVERNANCE

Padenga Holdings Limited is committed to meeting the 
expectations of shareholders, stakeholders and employees 
for accountability, transparency, integrity and sustainability 
through the adoption of the principles and practices of 
international best practice Codes of Corporate Governance.  
The Directors endeavour to comply with the key principles 
of Corporate Governance which emphasise the need for 
well-balanced effective boards, strong risk management and 
internal control oversight and sound stakeholder relations. The 
Board, with the assistance of Board Committees, determines 
the most appropriate corporate governance practices for 
Padenga with the understanding that corporate governance 
is a continual improvement process which takes into account 
legal requirements, best practice, practicality and affordability. 
Members of the Board, Management and Staff are responsible 
for upholding the goals and values to which Padenga aspires, 
namely: Integrity; Pursuit of Excellence; Respect; Passion; 
Fairness; Discipline; Humility with Confidence; To be the 
Best; and Team Spirit.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE CODES

The Directors have adopted, as a guideline, the key principles 
outlined in the King Governance code, and the Principles 
for Corporate Governance in Zimbabwe, as laid out in the 
Manual of Best Practice.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises three executive Directors and three 
independent non-executive Directors. The Board meets 
quarterly to provide input and oversight to the strategic 
planning process and monitors operational performance.  
Padenga has adopted a number of practices to regulate 
the division of responsibilities between the Board and 
management. Namely:

• Having the same ratio of executive and independent 
directors on the Board with the Chairman being 
independent.

Corporate Governance Statement
• The separation of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief 

Executive Officer.
• The Board sub-committees are chaired by independent 

directors and have a majority of independent members.
• The Board and Board Committees have the mandate, 

if necessary, to seek advice from independent experts to 
assist them in carrying out their duties.

A comprehensive Board Corporate Governance Manual has 
been developed which includes the Board Charter detailing 
its purpose, powers and specific responsibilities, Board annual 
work plans, and the policies and processes for Board and 
Director’s performance evaluation. Not all aspects of this 
have been adopted and implemented to date but will be in the 
future when deemed to be practical and appropriate.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Padenga has an audit committee that assists the Board in 
fulfilment of its duties. The committee currently comprises 
two independent non-executive Directors and one executive 
Director. An independent non-executive Director chairs the 
committee. The committee meets three times a year with the 
internal and external auditors to monitor the appropriateness 
of accounting policies, the effectiveness of systems of internal 
control and to consider the findings of the internal and external 
auditors. The committee’s responsibilities include monitoring 
risk management, internal control, financial reporting and 
compliance matters. To ensure their independence and 
objectivity both the internal and external auditors have 
unrestricted access to the audit committee. The internal audit 
function is currently outsourced to external service providers 
and the internal audit Charter and work plans have been 
adopted and agreed by the committee. The scope of its work is 
risk based. This is an on-going process.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises two independent 
non-executive Directors and one executive Director and 
determines, on behalf of the Board and shareholders, the 
individual remuneration packages for the executive Directors, 
non-executive directors and other members of the executive 
management team. The Chairman of the committee is an 
independent non-executive director. The remuneration 
committee makes recommendations to the Board regarding 
appropriate remuneration policies and practices, and ensures 
these are implemented.  Padenga’s policy is to provide 
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

remuneration packages that attract, retain and motivate high 
quality individuals who will contribute significantly to the 
growth of Padenga. Where necessary external remuneration 
advisors assists the committee in determining the appropriate 
remuneration levels and practices.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The management of risk is decentralised to the operating 
divisions, but in compliance with Group policies on risk, 
the process is reviewed centrally by the executive committee, 
which is in turn supervised by the audit committee. Although 
no formal enterprise risk assessment has been conducted yet, 
the focus of risk management currently hinges on identifying, 
assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of 
risk across the Group.  The Board through its close working 
relationship with the executive is satisfied that the executive 
and management have identified the key business risks 
and taken appropriate measures to mitigate against them. 
Awareness training on Risk Management has been provided 
to the Board and senior management of the Group.

CODES OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Padenga has developed Codes of Conduct and Ethics which 

have been adopted by the Board.  These Codes provide 
the employees and Directors with a practical set of guiding 
principles to help them make decisions in their everyday 
work.  The codes embody honesty, integrity, fairness and trust. 
Employees and Directors are required to demonstrate these 
traits as representatives of Padenga.

The key principles underlining these codes are:
• We act in Padenga’s best interests and 
 value the Group’s reputation
• We act with honesty and integrity 
• We commit to ensuring Justice and Fairness in our dealings  
 with staff, customers and the general public
• We seek to build Trust between ourselves and all those  
 with whom we interact
• We treat others with respect, we value differences and  
 maintain a safe working environment
• We identify conflicts of interest, expose them and manage  
 them responsibly
• We respect privacy and confidentiality – our intellectual  
 property is tightly guarded
• We do not make or receive improper payments, 
 benefits or gains
• We report breaches of our Code, the law 
 or Padenga’s policies or procedures
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Alexander Kenneth Calder - Non-Executive Chairman 
(Appointed November 2010)

Kenneth is a Chartered Accountant by profession and is 
a retired partner of PWC. He has twenty seven years of 
experience in the profession of which ten years were in 
Management Consultancy (Change Management and 
Human Capital) and seventeen years in Auditing and Risk 
Management Consultancy. His primary focus in later years 
was in corporate governance, internal audit, risk management 
and general consulting, and he was a founding member of the 
Zimbabwe National Task Force on Corporate Governance. 
He is currently involved with various business enterprises but 
still consults in a private capacity. 

Gary John Sharp - Chief Executive Officer 
(Appointed November 2010)

Gary completed his tertiary education at the University of 
Zimbabwe, where he attained a Master of Science (Tropical 
Resource Ecology) degree in 1982. He served in the Terrestrial 
Branch of the Department of National Parks and Wildlife 
Management between 1979 and 1987. Gary’s experience 
in the intensive husbandry of wildlife species dates back to 
1988 when he joined the Lonrho Zimbabwe Group. He 
was engaged as Chief Executive Officer of what was then the 
Niloticus Division of Innscor in 2000. That entity unbundled 
from Innscor in November 2010 through a listing on the 
ZSE to become Padenga Holdings Limited and Gary has 
continued to serve as Chief Executive Officer since that date.    

Oliver Tendai Kamundimu - Chief Financial Officer 
(Appointed November 2010)

Oliver completed his tertiary education at the University 
of Zimbabwe where he attained a Bachelor of Accountancy 
Honours degree. He served his articles of Clerkship with 
the then Coopers and Lybrand and qualified as a Chartered 
Accountant. Since that time he has worked for Lonrho 
Africa Limited, and Manica Africa, heading up their audit 
departments. Oliver joined Innscor in 1999 and was tasked 
with setting up Innscor’s internal audit department before 
leaving to join First Mutual Zimbabwe in 2001. He re-joined 
Innscor in 2004 as the Financial Director of their Niloticus 
Division and has continued in a similar position since the 
Company was separately listed in 2010.  
 

Board Of Directors
Michael John Fowler - Executive Director 
(Appointed November 2010)

Mike has been involved with the companies that preceded 
Innscor since 1982 and has held a number of executive 
positions within the Innscor Group since his appointment as 
a Director in 1994, including a period during which he served 
as Group Chief Executive Officer. He currently sits on the 
Remuneration Committee of Innscor. At various stages he 
has been a Director of companies that previously constituted 
the Agro-Processing Division of Innscor (namely Niloticus 
Division and Colcom Holdings Limited), as well as National 
Foods Holdings Limited. 

Annie Mutsa Mazvita Madzara - Non-Executive Director 
(Appointed November 2010)

Annie is an Environment and Development Professional with 
over 25 years of experience in the field, 13 of which have been 
in senior positions. Among her many qualifications, Annie 
holds a Natural and Aquatic Science qualification at Masters 
Level, a Masters in Business Administration Degree and a 
Masters in Development Studies. She has field and managerial 
experience from Public, Private and NGO sectors including 
Commercial Director at Parks and Wildlife Management 
Authority and managing the Environment and Climate 
Change Programme of the UNDP in Zimbabwe. She is a 
member of the African Forest Forum and a Fellow with the 
Leadership for Environment and Development (LEAD 
International).

Thembinkosi Nkosana Sibanda - Non-Executive Director 
(Appointed November 2010)

Themba graduated from the University of Zimbabwe in 1978 
majoring in Accounting, and subsequently joined Barclays 
Bank of Botswana at its Head Office in Gaborone. Having 
returned to Zimbabwe in the early 1980’s he completed his 
articles of clerkship, qualifying as a Chartered Accountant. He 
has remained in the same profession since, and has worked in 
compliance and audit for the past 34 years at Schmulian and 
Sibanda. Themba currently sits on various boards of Stock 
Exchange listed Companies. He currently chairs the Board of 
Edgars Stores Zimbabwe Limited. Themba is also a trustee of 
several organisations. 
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In recent years, there has been a measurable shift in the 
expectation of consumers globally with regards to the 
sustainable use of natural resources. These changing 
expectations have led to an increase in the demand for 
transparency pertaining to the manner in which businesses 
manage their operations, and Padenga is no exception to this. 
With this in mind, the company is committed to not only set 
the standards for sustainable development within the industry, 
but to also meet the expectations of the customers and end 
users of the products produced by Padenga. To further this 
commitment the company has engaged a consulting firm to 
advise on its sustainability reporting and to assist in developing 
this to the desired standards. Whilst looking to the future is 
imperative, the company has at the outset, maintained its focus 
on the management of the resources that are available to it as 
well as on minimising its environmental footprint. This report 
covers the initiatives relating to the Zimbabwe operations 
which by nature of their size, location and production volumes, 
together with the associated environmental, social and 
sustainability perspectives relating to those, have warranted 
the main focus by management in the period.

1. SUSTAINABLE FARMING OPERATIONS

 Padenga is aware of the responsibility it carries with 
regard to ensuring the sustainability of its operations.  
The company endeavours to apply accepted 
sustainability norms within its operations and to 
ensure compliance with all relevant local legislation. 
Ingrained in the company’s culture is the perspective 
that in order to be successful, its operations must not 
only be managed according to good practice, but must 
actually set the standards for the same in the industry. 

Sustainable Development Report
Throughout its operations there are continued efforts 
to fulfil the expectations of its international customer, as 
well as to maintain Padenga’s standing with the various 
local regulatory authorities and the Crocodile Farmers 
Association of Zimbabwe. 

 All skins produced and exported were done in full 
accordance with prevailing CITES provisions, as well as 
in line with Zimbabwe Parks and Wildlife Management 
Authority (PWLMA) regulations. Meat packaged for 
export was produced, processed, tested and shipped in 
accordance with the standards defined by the Public 
Health and Veterinary Authorities of both Zimbabwe 
and the receiving countries. This included mandatory 
batch testing of meat to meet exacting bacteriological 
standards as well as full traceability on all meat products 
produced back to pen of origin. 

 Wild Crocodile Population - In 2016 Padenga 
supported, both financially and logistically, an aerial 
survey of wild crocodile populations in Lake Kariba and 
the Lower Zambezi River. This survey was spearheaded 
by the Crocodile Farmers’ Association of Zimbabwe 
in conjunction with PWLMA. Initial survey findings 
indicated that 2016 adult crocodile population totals 
in Lake Kariba as a whole were not dissimilar to those 
from a similar lake-wide survey conducted in 1985. Of 
particular significance for Padenga were the increased 
proportions of adult crocodiles in both the Charara and 
Omay areas within which the company collects its annual 
wild egg allocations, as compared to populations in other 
areas of the lake covered by the survey. This growth in the 
crocodile population in these areas has occurred despite 
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a significant increase in cooperative fishing activities in 
the Charara and Omay areas and a much higher human 
population density as a consequence. The Charara River 
estuary in particular contained the highest population 
of adult crocodiles within the entire area surveyed and is 
testament to the conservation initiatives performed by the 
company through which local communities are rewarded 
for activities and actions that promote the survival of the 
reptiles in their areas.

  Improved Stocking Densities - During the course of the 
year, 40 new pens were constructed across the business, 
with the construction of a further 80 pens planned for 
2017. In addition, the company entered into negotiations 
with PWLMA for the lease of additional land for the 
construction of 150 new pens on land adjacent to 
Nyanyana Crocodile Farm. The construction of the 
additional pens at Nyanyana Crocodile Farm and Ume 
Crocodile Farm constitute a 3-year construction program 
which will ultimately allow for a significant reduction 
in the number of crocodiles stocked in each pen. There 
is no increase in production volumes associated with 
this significant increase in pen space – the objective is 
purely to reduce the numbers of animals per pen thereby 
materially enhancing animal welfare. Padenga already 
operates at stocking densities that are the lowest applied 
commercially in the Industry and this construction 
initiative will further positively enhance that situation. 

 Domestic Egg Collection - There was a 19% increase 
in the number of eggs produced by mature domestic 
female breeders delivered to the incubator compared to 
2015. This has contributed to a 48% cumulative increase 
in egg numbers produced by mature domestic females 
since 2012. These figures represent a step forward in 
the company’s commitment to eventually reducing its 
dependency on wild egg collection.

2. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

 Padenga remains committed to reducing its 
environmental impact and has several on-going programs 

aimed at making measurable inroads in this regard.  
 
 Energy Conservation Initiatives - The steps taken by 

Padenga in recent years to reduce energy consumption 
have, to a large degree, been mitigated by two contributory 
factors. Firstly, the consequences of the El Niño triggered 
drought saw the level of the water in Lake Kariba drop to 
its lowest level in over 20 years. This caused an increase 
in the pumping head, which in turn necessitated higher 
power usage to sustain the necessary water volumes to the 
farms. Secondly, an 11% increase in feed consumption 
in 2016 over 2015, necessitated longer operation of the 
mechanical feed plant thereby increasing power usage. 
Electricity meters were installed across the operation and 
at individual on-farm staff houses during the course of 
the year to more effectively monitor and manage energy 
consumption. The LED bulb replacement programme 
resulted in a further 358 fluorescent tubes being replaced 
with LED tubes in 2016, reducing the total wattage 
from lights by a further 23,207 watts. This replacement 
programme will be complete by the end of 2017. 
Notwithstanding the initiatives implemented previously 
and despite an increase in the frequency and duration of 
power outages at the northern farms, there was a small net 
increase in total electricity consumption in 2016 against 
that in 2015. Average monthly power consumption at 
the two northern farms still remained 15% below that 
recorded in 2013, despite a 5% increase in pen space 
and the addition of significantly more heavy mechanical 
equipment installed on the farms. Much of this was a 
function of operating the water pumps during the off-
peak periods and increasing the stored water capacity 
through the construction of large holding reservoirs.

 TOTAL ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION

  2013 2014 2015 2016 
Annual Usage (kWh) 490,946 415,320 418,944 420,160

 % Reduction Achieved 2.8% 15.4% (0.8%) (0.3%)

 Effluent Management – Drainage discharge points 
across the operation continue to be sampled on a monthly 
basis by representatives from the National Environmental 

Sustainable Development Report (continued)



12
Padenga Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

of the coal being consumed by adjusting the size of the 
coal pieces contributed to a 3.2% reduction in the total 
quantity of coal used. This complemented those initiatives 
implemented in 2015 being the use of mechanical boiler 
tube cleaners, the lagging of boiler pipes, and the use of 
a passive solar collector to pre-heat reservoir water for 
hatchlings. Total coal usage has decreased by 13% in the 
four years since 2013 as a consequence of these various 
actions.

 TOTAL COAL CONSUMPTION

  2013 2014 2015 2016
 Annual Usage (Kgs)       978,622        927,365        878,475  851,297 

% Reduction Achieved (8.0%) 5.2% 5.3% 3.1%
 
 There were proportionally more power outages 

experienced at the northern farms in 2016 than 
experienced in prior years. This impacted negatively on 
the total quantity of diesel consumed as generators were 
used during the period that mains supply was interrupted. 
Steps were taken to engage ZESA in an effort to work 
with their technicians to respond timeously to faults to 
minimise power disruptions during peak usage periods. 
Ume Crocodile Farm which operated for most of 2016 
entirely on diesel generated power, used more fuel 
than in previous years due to both the lower lake level 
previously mentioned and the addition of 60 new pens 
constructed in late 2015 and mid 2016 which increased 
the requirement for water.

 TOTAL FUEL CONSUMPTION

  2013 2014 2015 2016
 Annual Usage (Litres) 231,690 224,963 221,372 310,732
 % Reduction Achieved 0.2% 2.9% 1.6% (40.4%)

 Renewable Energy - During late 2016 a 215kWp solar 
energy plant was installed at Ume Crocodile Farm 
(UCF). This initiative was approved by the Zimbabwe 
Energy Regulatory Authority and constituted a two-
phase program with the first being the installation of a 
65kWp solar array to power the Administration Offices, 
Feed-plant, Staff houses and Clinic. This was a co-
generation project with the solar array providing 50% of 
the power and a diesel generator providing the balance 
and was commissioned successfully in December. The 
second phase encompassed the construction of a larger 
150kWp plant, providing solar energy to operate the 
pumps for the farm’s water supply during the daylight 
hours. Although installed in November/December this 

Sustainable Development Report (continued)

Management Authority (EMA). Effluent discharge test 
results for 2016 were within acceptable levels defined in 
the Environmental Management Act for all aspects of 
testing conducted with the exception of phosphate levels, 
which ultimately resulted in an increase in the number of 
results in the Red category. The phosphate levels in the 
pen discharge water are a consequence of residual feed 
waste and faecal matter in suspension.

 PADENGA PEN WATER MANAGEMENT

 EMA Test Categorisation 2013 2014 2015 2016 
Red Category 40% 28% 25% 50%

 Yellow Category 30% 44% 30% 10% 
Green Category 20% 24% 10% 40% 
Blue Category 10% 4% 35% 0% 
 100% 100% 100% 100%

 The company has engaged with both EMA and a 
private Environmental Consultancy Group to develop 
appropriate and lasting solutions for the treatment of 
the pen discharge water to achieve full compliance with 
the Environmental Management Act. The objectives 
are staggered with the immediate intention of reducing 
Phosphate levels to acceptable levels and then to identify 
a long-term water treatment solution for implementation. 

 
 The solid waste traps installed in 2015 continue to 

function extremely well, as do the settling ponds, but both 
of these are situated outside the perimeter of the farms 
which is the point at which sampling of the discharge 
effluent occurs and therefore the benefits are not reflected 
in the sampling results. Two additional settling ponds 
were constructed at Ume Crocodile Farm in 2016 to 
fulfil the same purpose. The plant life within the wetlands 
created as settling ponds has flourished extremely well 
and they are used as a year-round refuge by a large variety 
of waterfowl. 

 The company’s solid waste disposal site has continued to 
be rated in the blue category by EMA which is the status 
it has achieved for three years now.  

 
 PADENGA SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

 EMA Effluent 
 Test Categorisation 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Dumpsite Categorisation Yellow Blue Blue Blue

 Fossil Fuel Reduction - Initiatives to reduce the levels 
of carbon emissions continued as a major focus for the 
company. In 2016 an initiative to maximise the efficiency 



13
Padenga Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

phase will only be commissioned in early 2017. When 
both arrays are operational the system will reduce diesel 
usage at UCF by around 110,000 litres annually and 
this will be a reduction of around 50% at that operation. 
Consequently, this project will have a material impact 
on reducing the total diesel consumption volumes of the 
Group going forward.    

 EIA compliance – Concurrent to the negotiations 
with PWLMA for the lease of additional land adjacent 

Sustainable Development Report (continued)

to Nyanyana Crocodile Farm for the construction of 
additional pens, the company engaged with EMA to 
review and renew the Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) Compliance Authorisation that had previously 
been issued for this project. An EIA Renewal Certificate 
was successfully obtained on the 16th of August 2016 
and defines the environmental safeguards to be observed 
in the course of any development that follows. These are 
being observed in the creation of development plans for 
the leasehold when successfully concluded.
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Sustainable Development Report (continued)

Stakeholder Primary engagement Needs Identified Stakeholder management

Employees •Employee engagement 
survey
•Employee suggestion 
initiatives
• Grievance reporting 
procedures
• Social Entertainment 
and Sports facilitation

• Development and career progression
• Performance enabling environment
• Work/Life balance
• Health and Safety
• Collective Bargaining
• Equal opportunity 

We invest in developing our employees 
in an environment where they are treated 
with respect, their health and safety 
assured and their diversity valued.

Customers • Market research
• Customer satisfaction 
initiatives

• Upholding customer charter
• Customer engagement 

We uphold the rights of our customers in 
line with our customer charter ensuring 
that we deliver premium quality products 
as per their requirements.

Investors • Relationships with 
intermediaries
• Investor presentations
• One on One meetings 
with investors

• Comprehensive but concise informa-
tion on operations and future outlook at 
regular intervals
• Returns commensurate with risks 
assumed

We commit to providing a balanced re-
view of our performances and prospects 
in our communications with investors 
ensuring a competitive return/risk on 
their investment.

Government 
and Regulators

• Continuous dialogue 
with government minis-
tries and representatives
• Meeting, policy trend 
analyses and industry 
forums

• Stability and growth of the export 
sector
• Compliance with regulatory direction 
and obligations in line with ZIMASSET
• Responsible business practices
• Alignment of company’s strategy to 
meet national priorities 
• Value Addition

We are committed to meet the economic, 
social and environmental obligations in 
line with the country’s strategy.

Community • Local community en-
gagement, media, social 
events and sponsorship
• High degree of partic-
ipation

• Responsible business practices
• Community development
• Community empowerment
• Employment, security and stability

We engage with local communities to 
support economic activity providing 
opportunities and facilitating their 
socio-economic wellbeing.

Suppliers and 
service providers

• Regular meetings, writ-
ten communications
• Transparent bidding 
process
• Relationship building

• Business growth
• Responsible business practices
• Strategic partnerships
• Transformation in procurement 
process
• Open Communication

We recognise excellence in service by 
our suppliers and look to support their 
growth through mutually rewarding 
partnerships.

3. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

 The Company aspires to have itself recognised by stakeholders as a trustworthy and respectable partner within the crocodile 
Industry. With that objective in mind, dialogue with and feedback from our stakeholders is important in terms of building a 
constructive relationship with them. Our Stakeholders can be categorised into six main groupings, being: 

 (a). Employees;   (b). Customers; (c). Investors; (d). Government and Regulators; (e). Community; (f ). Suppliers and 
Service Providers.  

 The framework for Stakeholder Engagement is embodied in the Sustainability Policy. The following table summarises the 
key aspects of this policy.

 The commitments in the Stakeholder Management Framework and the progress towards implementation of these are 
managed through an integrated governance process which includes involvement of the Company’s executive leadership 
and its Board of Directors. Each of our various business sub-units is responsible for contributing to and implementing the 
Stakeholder Management Framework. 
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Sustainable Development Report (continued)

4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
 

 Padenga’s 2016 Corporate Social Responsibility Program 
was formulated with input from the various stakeholders 
that the company engages with, along with requests from 
within the communities as well as proposals submitted 
by the company’s own employees. With severe drought 
conditions experienced during most of early 2016 and a 
challenging economic environment prevailing, Padenga’s 
Social Responsibility Program became increasingly more 
valuable to members of the communities within which 
the Company operates. Padenga has continued to fulfil a 
wide spectrum of basic needs within the communities.  

 Education - Padenga supports educational development 
in the region through partnership with both government 
and non-government organisations, and facilitating 
an ongoing program of educational infrastructure 
rehabilitation as well as the development of new school 
facilities. During 2016 this included:

• The donation of desks and chairs to Kalundu 
Primary School to equip the four classroom blocks 
constructed by Padenga in conjunction with the 
Phyllis Aspinall Foundation over the preceding two 
years. 

• Refitting of the Ume Primary School early childhood 
development class with new desks and chairs. 

• Further repairs to Nyamhunga Primary School’s 
facilities through the repair and replacement of 
sections of the school’s perimeter wall, and upgrading 
its sports facilities. 

• Continued partnership with the Zambezi School 
Book Project, and the Bourke Family Foundation, 
with Padenga facilitating the transportation and 
distribution of 1,000 portable solar lights for reading 
to thirteen different rural schools in the Omay 
communal area.  

 The educational development program implemented by 
the company in 2015 in collaboration with the Ministry 
of Education was expanded in 2016 with the number of 
children being supported by the Company sponsorship 
program increasing from twenty to fifty children. 
Through this initiative the Company meets the annual 
educational expenses of all fifty primary school children.  
Padenga also meets the tertiary education costs of one 
individual who was awarded a Company scholarship. 
This program continues to be well received by the 
community and well supported by the local Ministry of 
Education officials.

 



16
Padenga Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

 Conservation - The company continues to support the 
conservation activities of both the Zimbabwe Parks and 
Wildlife Management Authority and the various non-
profit organisations that they work with in fulfilling 
their overall statutory mandate. Programs that Padenga 
supported during 2016 included: 
• Co-sponsorship of a PWLMA Stakeholder 

Workshop to consider the proposal to CITES 
to reclassify the listing of lion and elephant from 
Appendix II, and the subsequent sponsorship of 
PWLMA officials to attend the CITES Convention 
held in South Africa. 

• Co-sponsorship of the PWLMA anti-poaching 
awareness campaign launched in 2016. 

• The provision of fuel to the Kariba Animal Welfare 
Trust Fund in support of their law enforcement and 
animal welfare operations. 

• Support to local PWLMA officers, particularly 
in respect of the conduct of anti-poaching efforts 
through the provision of fuel, supplies and materials, 
and maintenance of their vehicles.  

• The donation of computer equipment to PWLMA 
to aid in their anti-poaching efforts. 

• Support to the Tashinga Trust Initiative through 
the transportation of 17 tonnes of cement and other 
building supplies for use in the construction of a new 
PWLMA anti-poaching base in the Zambezi Valley.

 
 Community support - the devastating effects of the El 

Niño triggered drought, which were material enough 
to be declared a National Disaster, were particularly 
evident in the Mola district of the Omay given the poor 
soil quality, high ambient temperatures and low average 

rainfall that typifies this area. This necessitated continued 
support from the company through the provision of 
much needed food relief to avert situations of localised 
poverty and malnutrition. The company successfully 
facilitated a hunger alleviation program through its own 
Food-For-Work initiative run in conjunction with the 
local Chief as well as the Nyaminyami Rural District 
Council. The Company also facilitated the storage and 
transportation of drought relief food that had been 
donated to Government, and the provision of spare parts 
and fuel to the District Development Fund to enable 
them to transport maize across the Lake to affected 
communities. Padenga itself donated and distributed 100 
tonnes of maize, and assisted in the transportation of an 
additional 115 tonnes of maize to the Mola and adjacent 
communities. These initiatives were an example of 
Government and the private sector working successfully 
together to roll out relief programs for the advantage of 
the local communities.

 Other notable community projects that Padenga 
facilitated in 2016 included:

• The company provided resources and funding for cutting 
the grass and shrubbery on the road verges along the 
65km highway between Kariba and Makuti, greatly 
improving road safety for all users along the narrow and 
twisting road. This is the third year that Padenga has 
supported this initiative. 

• Maintenance of public roads within the Charara 
Wilderness area. Padenga graded and re-gravelled parts 
of the main access road along the power line and into 
Chawara business and residential areas. 

• The donation of computer equipment to the Zimbabwe 
Republic Police (CID unit, Kariba) 

• Repairs to the Nyaminyami Rural District Council 
administration facilities in Siakobvu and the provision of 
furnishings for the Council boardroom. 

• The continued provision of free transport on company 
boats for members of the Mola community travelling 
across the lake between the Omay and Kariba town.

• The continued provision of fuels and the supply of 
transport for various government officials engaged on 
business within the district to enable them to fulfil their 
mandated responsibilities. 

 Padenga’s contribution towards Community projects for 
the year totalled $76,979 compared to $88,682 spent in 
2015.

Sustainable Development Report (continued)
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 Padenga continued to partner with other organisations 
in the provision of employee wellness programs. During 
the course of the year the company collaborated with 
the Ministry of Health, through the Kariba Hospital, 
to convene quarterly HIV/Aids testing and counselling 
sessions. In addition to this, free eye testing was provided 
through the Council for the Blind’s Mobile Eye Unit, 
indoor residual spraying and malaria awareness education 
was facilitated through the Ministry of Health Child 
Care Unit, as well as continuing health care education 
and awareness programs run by the Health Officers 
operating the company’s two clinics.   

 Employee Safety - Job Hazard Analyses were once again 
completed for all areas of the business, with corrective 
measures being proposed and implemented where areas 
of concern were highlighted. Through the conduct of 
continuous on the job retraining there was strict adherence 
to clearly defined Standard Operating Procedures. The 
company’s provision of Personal Protective Clothing 
and Equipment was deemed to be appropriate by The 
National Social Security Services Authority (NSSA) and 
the Department of Veterinary services in the course of 
their respective inspections of the company’s operations. 
No major concerns in regard to employee safety were 
raised during any of these inspections. These factors have 
contributed towards a continuation of the low incidence 
rate of work-related injuries at Padenga notwithstanding 
the potentially hazardous work environment that 
prevails. 

 There were, once again, no cases of work-related fatalities 
during the year.

 
 WORK-RELATED FATALITIES
 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
 - - - - -

 Employee Development – the strengthening of middle 
management staffing structures has been identified 
as one of the key areas of focus in sustaining the 
continued successful development of the organisation. 
This dovetails well with the company’s support for the 
continued development of its employee’s skills levels and 
competencies. During 2016, 23 employees were engaged 
in some form of further education, which represented 
44% of the administration/middle management grade 
staff. Within that number, 3 employees were studying for 
Masters Degrees, 9 for undergraduate Degrees, and 11 
for further professional qualifications.

5. HUMAN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
  One of the key elements of any successful business is the 

attention to human capital management. The company’s 
remote location presents certain challenges with respect 
to maintaining a healthy and motivated workforce. 
Through various initiatives the company seeks to ensure 
the continued health, safety and development of its 
employees. 

 
 Employee Wellness - Padenga has continued its 

partnership with Providence Human Capital (formerly 
Innscor Wellness) in the provision of primary healthcare 
to its employees and their families, as well as to members 
of the local communities. Given the economic challenges 
being experienced nationally, Government medical 
facilities face ever increasing challenges in sustaining the 
delivery of basic healthcare services to rural communities. 
Consequently, the two clinics operated by the company 
at Ume Crocodile Farm and Kariba Crocodile Farm 
respectively have become important institutions in 
providing primary healthcare to employees, their 
dependants and members of the community. The two 
clinics served a total of 6,541 patients over the course of 
the year, with over 45% of those attended to being non-
employees. These patients were seen by either a permanent 
full time resident Health Officer or by a medical Doctor 
who carries out locum consultations facilitated by the 
Company. 

Sustainable Development Report (continued)
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Company Secretary’s Certification
For The Year Ended 31 December 2016.

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the Company has lodged with the Registrar of Companies all such returns 
as are required to be lodged by the Company in terms of the Zimbabwe Companies Act ( Chapter 24:03) and all such returns 
are true, correct and up to date.

A D Lorimer
Company Secretary
Harare, 
16 March 2017

The Directors of the Company are required by the Companies 
Act and the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange listing regulations 
to maintain adequate accounting records and to prepare 
financial statements that present a true and fair understanding 
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at the 
end of each financial year, and of the profit or loss and cash 
flows for the period. In preparing the accompanying financial 
statements, generally accepted accounting practices have been 
followed.  Suitable accounting policies have been used and 
consistently applied, and reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates have been made.

The principal accounting policies of the Group conform to 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and are 
consistent with those applied in the previous year and except 
for any changes arising from revisions and updates in IFRS as 
outlined in section 3 of the financial statements (Accounting 
Policies).

The Directors believe that the statements of financial position 
that have been presented as at 31 December 2016 are a fair 
reflection of the assets and liabilities of the Company and 
the Group and therefore a fair reflection of the shareholders 
equity in the business.

The Directors have satisfied themselves that the Group is 

in a sound financial position and has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.  
Accordingly, they are satisfied that it is appropriate to adopt 
the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial 
statements.

The Board recognizes and acknowledges its responsibility 
for the Group’s systems of internal financial control. Padenga 
maintains internal controls and systems that are designed to 
safeguard the assets of the Group, prevent and detect errors, 
negligence and fraud and ensure the completeness and accuracy 
of the Group’s records.  The Group’s Audit Committee has 
met the external auditors to discuss their reports relating 
to their work, which includes Key Audit Matters ( KAMs) 
and an assessment of the relative strengths and weaknesses 
of critical control areas and processes. No breakdowns in 
internal controls involving material loss were reported to the 
Directors in respect of the period under review. These financial 
statements were prepared by the finance department of 
Padenga Holdings under the direction and supervision of the 
Chief  Financial Officer, Oliver Kamundimu (PAAB number 
00250).

The financial statements for the period ended 31 December 
2016, which appear on pages 25 to 63 have been approved by 
the Board of Directors and are signed on its behalf by:

Directors Responsibility And 
Approval Of Financial Statements

AK CALDER OT KAMUNDIMU G J SHARP 
Chairman Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer

16 March 2017
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Sixth Annual Report together with the audited financial statements of the Group 
for the year ended 31 December 2016. In the report, “Group” refers to Padenga Holdings Limited and its subsidiary companies.

Share Capital
At 31 December 2016, the authorised share capital of the Company was 800,000,000 ordinary shares, and the issued share capital 
was 541,593,440 (same for 2015) ordinary shares. 

Group Results FY 2016 FY 2015
 US$ US$

Profit before taxation 11 040 379 9 950 208 

Taxation (2 638 456) (2 864 790)

Profit for the year  8 401 923 7 085 418 

Profit attributable to shareholders 8 948 240 7 255 522 

Dividends
The Board has declared a final dividend of 0.83 US cents per share, payable in respect of all the ordinary shares of the Company. 
This dividend is in respect of the financial year ending 31st December 2016 and will be payable in full to all the shareholders 
of the Company registered at the close of business on Thursday 13th April 2017. The payment of this dividend will take place 
on or about Friday the 28th of April 2017. The shares of the Company will be traded cum – dividend on the Zimbabwe Stock 
Exchange up to the market day of Friday 7th April 2017 and ex – dividend as from Monday 10th April 2017. This dividend 
represents a cash dividend cover of two times.

Reserves
The movement in the reserves of the Group are shown in the Group Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to the Financial 
Statements.

Directors and their Interests
No Directors had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any contract of significance in relation to the Group’s 
businesses. The beneficial interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company are given in Note 18 of the financial statements.

Board attendance (from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016)

  Name Main   Audit  Remuneration 
  of Director Board    Committee   Committee
 Attended Possible Attended Possible Attended Possible
  Alexander Kenneth Calder 4 4 3 3 2 2
  Gary John Sharp 3 4 2 3 - -
  Oliver Tendai Kamundimu 4 4 - - - -
  Michael John Fowler 3 4 - - 2 2
  Annie Mutsa Mazvita Madzara 4 4 - - 2 2
  Thembinkosi Nkosana Sibanda 3 4 3 3 - -

Chairperson  A. Calder  T. Sibanda  A. Madzara
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS  (Continued) 

Directors’ Fees
Members will be asked to approve payments of the directors’ fees in respect of the period ended 31 December 2016.

Auditors
Members will be asked to approve the remuneration of the auditors for the financial period ended 31 December 2016 and to 
re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company to hold office for the following year.

Annual General Meeting
The Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 08:15 hours on Thursday 18th May 2017 at the Royal Harare 
Golf Club, 5th Street Extension, Harare.

For and on behalf of the Board.

AK CALDER                                                                                                    G J SHARP
Chairman                                                                                                          Chief Executive Officer

Harare                                                                                                               Harare
16 March 2017                                                                                                  16 March 2017
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Chartered Accountants (Zimbabwe)
Angwa City
Cnr Julius Nyerere Way/
Kwame Nkrumah Avenue
P.O. Box 62 or 702
Harare

Tel: +263 4 750905 / 750979
Fax: +263 4 750707 / 773842
E-mail: admin@zw.ey.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PADENGA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Padenga Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries 
(“the Group”) set out on pages 25 to 62 which comprise  the consolidated statement of financial position 
as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and its consolidated financial performance and 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards.  

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance 
with the International Ethics Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA 
Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in 
Zimbabwe. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description 
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, 
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including 
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the 
accompanying financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PADENGA HOLDINGS LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the 
audit

Biological assets are the single largest item on the statement 
of financial position and represent the core of the Group’s 
operations. The key variables in the determination of the value 
as recorded in the financial statement are quantity and pricing.

Physical verification of biological assets
The crocodile and alligator livestock is reared in secure 
enclosures that incorporate strong physical and biosecurity 
controls to ensure the appropriate welfare of the animals. 
Material disruption of the environment within which the 
livestock is raised is inconsistent with the norms of good 
husbandry and consequently water in the pens is not drained to 
facilitate a physical verification of stock numbers. Management 
relies on its throughput reconciliations and farming records to 
determine the quantity of livestock as at year end.

An acceptable range of losses of crocodiles/alligators is set 
and monitored on a regular basis.

Accordingly the physical verification of biological assets is 
considered to be a key audit matter due to the physical count 
considerations as noted above.

Our principal audit procedures  in this 
area involved:

• Attending the biological asset 
verification as at year end and 
estimating the crocodiles in 
the pens and comparing the 
quantities with the accounting 
records for reasonableness.

• Assessing the controls and the 
processes used by management 
of estimating and recording 
quantities of livestock as at year 
end.

• Reviewing throughput 
reconciliations prepared by 
management and verifying 
the key inputs to underlying 
operational and accounting 
records to obtain reasonable 
assurance on existence of 
biological assets.

Fair valuation of biological assets 
The valuation of biological assets is a complex and subjective 
process owing to the unique and specialised nature of the 
industry. The fair valuation of biological assets represents an 
area of significant estimate over a significant statement of 
financial position account. 

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements; 
the Group uses the market comparison technique for valuation 
of crocodiles and alligators and the cost approach for the 
valuation of breeders; based on the following key assumptions:

• The price per skin;
• The  premium meat yield per kilogram of crocodile and 

alligator
• The replacement cost of breeders.

Accordingly the fair valuation of biological assets is considered 
to be a key audit matter due to the impact of the above 
assumptions to the value of biological assets. 

We:

• Evaluated management’s 
inputs and methodology used 
in the valuation model applying 
guidance from International 
Financial Reporting Standards

• Assessed the consistency of 
application of the valuation model 
and compared the inputs to both 
internal and external data.

• Re-performed the valuation 
process using management’s 
model and independently re-
calculated the fair values per 
farm, livestock category and age 
band. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PADENGA HOLDINGS LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Other Information
Other information consists of the Financial Highlights, Chairman’s Statement, Corporate Governance 
Statement and related Reports included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial 
statements and our auditors report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained 
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act (Chapter 24:03), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those  risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PADENGA HOLDINGS LIMITED (CONTINUED)

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

• We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.From the 
matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements, have in all material respects, been properly prepared 
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of and in the manner required by the Companies Act 
(Chapter 24:03).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr David Gwande 
(PAAB Practising Certificate Number 132).

 

ERNST & YOUNG
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (ZIMBABWE)
REGISTERED PUBLIC AUDITORS

HARARE

4 APRIL 2017
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Consolidated Statement Of Profit Or Loss And 
Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2016
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
   Note US$ US$ 
Revenue 7 31 272 712 27 491 537 
Other income 7.1 1 441 806  46 213 
Operating costs                                                                                                                               7.2 (20 098 758) (17 552 046)
Operating profit before depreciation, amortisation, 
impairment and fair valuation adjustments  12 615 760 9 985 704 
Depreciation                                                                                                                              12 (1 801 208) (1 727 731)
Amortisation                                                                                                                      13 (15 459) (31 565)
Impairment of goodwill                                                                                                                              14 - ( 969 174)
Operating profit before interest and fair value adjustments  10 799 093 7 257 234 
Fair value adjustments on biological assets 15.3.4  (289 185) 3 242 177 
Profit before interest and tax  10 509 908 10 499 411 
Interest income 8.1 1 443 590  307 906 
Interest expense                                                                                                                          8.2 (913 119) (857 109)
Profit before tax  11 040 379 9 950 208 
Income tax expense                                                                                                                 9.1 (2 638 456) (2 864 790)
Profit for the year   8 401 923 7 085 418 
Other comprehensive income  - -
Total comprehensive income for the year   8 401 923 7 085 418 
    
Profit for the year attributable to:    
Equity holders of the parent   8 948 240 7 255 522 
Non-controlling interest   (546 317) (170 104)
    8 401 923 7 085 418 
    
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:    
Equity holders of the parent   8 948 240 7 255 522 
Non-controlling interest   (546 317) (170 104)
    8 401 923 7 085 418 
Earnings per share (cents)    
Basic earnings per share 6 1.65 1.34
Diluted earnings per share 6 1.65 1.34
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Consolidated Statement Of Financial Position

AK Calder G J Sharp
Chairman  Chief Executive Officer

16 March 2017              16 March 2017

As at 31 December 2016  31 Dec 2016  31 Dec 2015
 Notes US $                  US $
ASSETS    
Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment                                                                                             12 17 315 206 15 223 986
Intangible assets                                                                                                                       13 36 337 51 796
Biological assets                                                                                                                             15.1 4 324 536 3 686 179
   21 676 079 18 961 961
Current assets     
Biological assets                                                                                                        15.2 26 140 741 26 149 950
Inventories                                                                                                                                 16 2 590 785 3 523 179
Trade and other receivables                                                                                                     17 10 538 973 2 482 402
Tax asset 9.2 238 459 -
Cash and cash equivalents 11.3 10 265 655 10 525 248
    49 774 613 42 680 779
Total assets   71 450 692 61 642 740
    
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
    
Capital and reserves    
Share capital                                                                                                                                  18 54 159 54 159
Share premium  18.5 27 004 245 27 004 245
Retained earnings 18.7 26 143 106 19 421 793
Change in ownership reserve 18.6 (236 946) (165 948)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent  52 964 564 46 314 249
Non-controlling interest   380 615 629 353
Total shareholders’ equity   53 345 179 46 943 602
    
Non-current liabilities    
Customer deposits 20.2 1 179 525 1 130 525
Interest-bearing borrowings 19.1 5 004 705 2 321 833
Deferred tax liability                                                                                                            10 6 304 012 6 206 596
    12 488 242 9 658 954
Current liabilities    
Deferred consideration 19.3 425 885 1 366 770
Customer deposits 20.2 256 432 -
Interest-bearing borrowings                                                                                                               19.2 3 017 114 1 334 671
Trade and other payables                                                                                                          20 1 598 804 1 733 070
Provisions                                                                                                                                 21 319 036 312 844
Current tax payable                                                                                                                   9.2 - 292 829
   5 617 271 5 040 184
Total liabilities   18 105 513 14 699 138
Total equity and liabilities   71 450 692 61 642 740
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Consolidated Statement Of Changes 
In Equity
  Attributable to owners of the parent     
   Change in   Non - 
 Share  Share Ownership Retained  Controlling 
 Capital Premium Reserve  Earnings  Total Interest Total   
 (Note 18) (Note 18) (Note 5)    
 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$

Balance at 1 Jan 2015          54 159  27 004 245  - 13 760 273 40 818 677 1 113 509 41 932 186
         
Profit for the year              -                    -  - 7 255 522  7 255 522 (170 104)  7 085 418
Acquisition of non-controlling 
interest (Note 5)                                               - - (165 948) - (165 948) (314 052) (480 000)
Dividends paid               -                    -  - (1 594 002)  (1 594 002) - (1 594 002)
Balance at 31 December 2015  54 159  27 004 245      (165 948) 19 421 793 46 314 249     629 353 46 943 602
         
Profit for the year  -  -                           - 8 948 240 8 948 240 (546 317) 8 401 923
Change in degree of control (Note 5)  - - (70 998) - (70 998) 297 579 226 581
Dividends paid  -  -     - (2 226 927) (2 226 927) -   (2 226 927)
Balance at 31 December 2016 54 159  27 004 245  (236 946) 26 143 106 52 964 564 380 615 53 345 179
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Consolidated Statement Of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2016
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  Note US $ US $
Cash generated from operating activities  11.1 4 418 998 13 662 136
Interest received  1 189 023 307 906                      
Interest paid  (748 234) (786 416)
Taxation paid 9.2 (3 072 328) (2 233 289)
Net cash generated from operations  1 787 459 10 950 337

Net cash utilised in investing activities  (4 507 400) (2 375 834)
- proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment  243 890 1 981
- purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (4 139 295) (2 222 834)
- expenditure on non-current biological assets 15.1 (145 413) (135 619)
- payment of deferred consideration  (466 582) -
- purchase of intangible assets  - (19 362)

Net cash generated from /(utilised in) financing activities  2 460 348 (442 072)
- proceeds from borrowings  14 135 000 13  604 865
- additional investment by non-controlling interest  226 582 -
- payment of purchase of additional interest  (480 000) -
- repayments of borrowings  (9 194 307) (12 452 935)
- dividends paid 11.2 (2 226 927) (1 594 002)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (259 593) 8 132 431
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  10 525 248 2 392 817

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  11.3 10 265 655 10 525 248
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Accounting Policies
1     Corporate Information
 The consolidated financial statements of Padenga 

Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries for the year 
ended 31 December 2016 were authorized for issue 
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 16 
March 2017.  Padenga Holdings Limited is a Limited 
Liability Company incorporated and domiciled in 
Zimbabwe whose shares are publicly traded on the 
Zimbabwe Stock Exchange. The principal activity of the 
Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) include the 
production and rearing of crocodiles and alligators, and 
the export of Nile crocodile and alligator skins and meat 
to International customers. 

2     Statement of Compliance
 The Group’s financial statements have been prepared 

in conformity with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The consolidated 
financial statements have been prepared in compliance 
with the Zimbabwe Companies Act (Chapter 24:03).

2.1  Going concern
 The Directors have satisfied themselves that the Group is 

in a sound financial position and has adequate resources 
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. Accordingly, they are satisfied that it is appropriate 
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.

2.2  Basis of preparation
 The financial statements are based on the statutory 

records that are maintained under the historical cost basis, 
except for biological assets that have been measured at fair 
value.  The financial statements are presented in United 
States Dollars (USD).

2.3  Basis of Consolidation
 The consolidated financial statements comprise the 

financial statements of Padenga Holdings Limited and 
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016. The subsidiaries 
are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being 
the date on which the Group obtained control, and will 
continue to be consolidated until the date when such 
control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiary 
are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent 
company, using consistent accounting policies except 
where stated. 

 Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has 
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through 
its power over the investee.

 Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if 
the Group has:
• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it 

the current ability to direct the relevant activities of 
the investee).

• Exposure or rights to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee, and

• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect 
its returns.

 When the Group has less than a majority of the voting 
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers 
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing 
whether it has power over an investee, including:

• The contractual arrangement with the other vote 
holders of the investee.

• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements.
• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

 The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an 
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. 
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group 
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the 
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed 
of during the year are included in the statement of 
comprehensive income and the statement of financial 
position from the date the Group gains control until the 
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

 Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive 
income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the 
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, 
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having 
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made 
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting 
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions 
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on 
consolidation.

 A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without 
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. 
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:



30
Padenga Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

Accounting Policies (continued)

• Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and 
liabilities of the subsidiary

• Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling 
interests

• Derecognises the cumulative translation differences 
recorded in equity

• Recognises the fair value of the consideration received
• Recognises the fair value of any investment retained
• Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
• Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously 

recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, 
as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had 
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

2.4  Goodwill
 Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of 

the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair 
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary 
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is recognised as an 
asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually. If the 
consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets 
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in 
profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

 Any impairment is recognised immediately in profit 
or loss and is not subsequently reversed. On disposal 
of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is 
included in the determination of the profit or loss on 
disposal.

3    Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

3.1  New and amended standards and interpretations 
 The accounting policies adopted by the Group are 

consistent with those of the prior year. Amendments and 
improvements to standards that became effective for the 
Group in the current year did not have a material impact 
on the Group’s financial results.

3.2 Standards and interpretations in issue not yet effective
 Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of 

issuance of the Group’s financial statements are listed 
below. This listing is of those standards and interpretations 
issued that the Group reasonably expects to have an 
impact on disclosures, financial position or performance 
when applied at a future date. The Group intends to 
adopt these standards when they become effective.

 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – classification and 
measurement - On 24 July 2014, the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued the final 
version of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments bringing 
together the classification and measurement, impairment 
and hedge accounting phases of the IASB’s project to 
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The 
classification and measurement requirements address 
specific application issues arising in IFRS 9 (2009) that 
were raised by preparers, mainly from the financial 
services industry. The expected credit loss model addresses 
concerns expressed following the financial crisis that 
entities recorded losses too late under IAS 39. 

 IFRS 9 stipulates that financial assets are measured at 
amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss, or fair 
value through other comprehensive income, based 
on both the entity’s business model for managing the 
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash 
flow characteristics. Apart from the ‘own credit risk’ 
requirements, classification and measurement of financial 
liabilities is unchanged from existing requirements.  

 IFRS 9 is applicable for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2018, but early adoption is permitted 
under IFRS. The Group’s financial assets currently 
comprise of trade & other receivables and cash & cash 
equivalents and the Group will consider the amendments 
where applicable when they become effective.

 
 IFRS 15- Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
 The IASB issued their joint revenue recognition standard, 

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers, 
which replaces all existing IFRS revenue requirements. 
The core principle of IFRS 15 is that revenue is recognised 
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to 
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration 
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services.

 IFRS15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step 
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with 
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity 
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods 
or services to a customer. The new revenue standard will 
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements 
under IFRS. Either a full retrospective application or a 
modified retrospective application is required.
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 IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model that will apply to 
revenue earned from a contract with a customer (with 
limited exceptions), regardless of the type of revenue 
transaction or the industry. The standard’s requirements 
will also apply to the recognition and measurement 
of gains and losses on the sale of some non-financial 
assets that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary 
activities (e.g., sales of property, plant and equipment 
or intangibles). Extensive disclosures will be required, 
including disaggregation of total revenue; information 
about performance obligations; changes in contract asset 
and liability account balances between periods and key 
judgements and estimates. The standard is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but 
early adoption is permitted under IFRS. The Group is 
still assessing the impact of IFRS 15.

 IFRS 16 - Leases
 The International Accounting Standards board (IASB) 

issued IFRS 16 in January 2016 which requires lessees 
to recognize assets and liabilities for most leases on 
their balance sheets. Under the new standard, a lease is a 
contract or part of a contract that conveys the right to use 
an asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
To be a lease, a contract must convey the right to control 
the use of the identified asset, which could be a physically 
distinct portion of an asset. The standard will be effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
The Company is still assessing the impact of the standard. 
The Group has operational leases ranging from nine 
years to twenty years, this will have a material impact on 
adoption of the standard.

 Transfers of Investment Property 
 (Amendments to IAS 40)   

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer 
property, including property under construction or 
development into, or out of investment property. The 
amendments   state that a change in use occurs when 
the property meets, or ceases to meet the definition of 
investment property and there is evidence of the change 
in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the 
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in 
use. Entities should apply the amendments prospectively 
to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning 
of the annual reporting period in which the entity first 
applies the amendments. An entity should reassess 

the classification of property held at that date and, if 
applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions that 
exist at that date. Retrospective application in accordance 
with IAS 8 is only permitted if that is possible without the 
use of hindsight.  Early application of the amendments 
is permitted and must be disclosed. The amendments 
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018.  The Group will consider the amendments 
where applicable when they become effective. However, 
the amendment is not expected  not have impact on the 
Group as it currently does not have investment property.

 IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency 
Transactions and Advance Consideration   
The interpretation clarifies that in determining the 
spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the 
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the 
derecognition of a non- monetary asset or non-monetary 
liability relating to advance consideration, the date of 
the transaction is the date on which an entity initially 
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary 
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there 
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the 
entity must determine a date of the transactions for 
each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2018. The Group will consider 
the amendments where applicable when they become 
effective.

 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities   

 Clarification of the scope of the disclosure 
 requirements in IFRS 12   

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements 
in IFRS 12, other than those in paragraphs B10–B16, 
apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture 
or an   associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint 
venture or an associate) that is classified (or included in a 
disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.   
 
The amendments are effective from 1 January 2017 and 
must be applied retrospectively. The Group will consider 
the clarifications when the Group classifies its subsidiary 
as held for sale.
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 IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative – Amendments to IAS 7

 The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows are 
part of the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative and require an 
entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial 
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from 
financing activities, including both changes arising from 
cash flows and non-cash changes.

 The amendment is effective for the years beginning 
on or after 1 January 2017 and will result in additional 
disclosures in the financial statements that will provide 
information to help investors better understand changes 
in the Group’s borrowings.

4   Summary of  Significant Accounting Policies

 Revenue and Other Income Recognition
 Revenue, which excludes Value Added Tax, cash 

discounts and sales between Group companies, represents 
the invoiced value of goods and services supplied by the 
Group. The Group measures revenue at the fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue 
is recognised only when it is probable that economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Group and the amount of revenue and associated costs 
incurred can be measured reliably. The Group assesses its 
revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to 
determine if it is acting as a principal or agent. The Group 
has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its 
revenue arrangements.

 The following specific recognition criteria must be met 
before revenue is recognized:

 Sale of goods
 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the 

significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 
have passed to the buyer, usually upon delivery. In addition 
to revenue from sale of goods, there is incremental revenue 
over and above the agreed guaranteed price, recognised 
when the Group’s customer makes a profit on selling the 
product to the final user. The revenue recognised is equal 
to the Group’s share of the profit made by the customer. 
Similarly, the Group recognizes a loss if the customer 
makes a loss on selling the product to the final users as 
the Group is liable to share in the losses. The incremental 
revenue or loss is only recognised when the customer has 

actually sold the product to the final users, as it is difficult 
to estimate the potential incremental revenue or loss at 
year end. No incremental loss has been recognised to date 
under this arrangement.

 Quality Incentive
 Quality incentive is recognised when the Group’s right to 

receive the quality incentive has been established.

 Export Incentive
 Export incentive is recognised when the Group’s right 

to receive the export incentive has been established. The 
export incentive is recognised as income on receipt of 
export proceeds in the FCA account.

 Interest income
 Interest income is recognised when it is probable that 

the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest 
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the 
principal outstanding amount and at the effective interest 
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on 
initial recognition.

 Dividend Income
 Dividend income from investments is recognised when 

the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been 
established (provided that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Group) and the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably.

 Employee Benefits
 Employee benefits are all forms of benefits given in 

exchange for services rendered by employees. These are 
classified as:

a) Short-term employee benefits – benefits due to be 
settled within 12 months after the end of the period 
in which the employees rendered the related services;

b) Post-employment benefits are benefits payable after 
the completion of employment. Post-employment 
benefit plans are benefit plans which are formal or 
informal arrangements providing post-employment 
benefits for one or more employees. Such plans (or 
funds) may be either defined contribution funds or 
defined benefit funds.
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c) Termination benefits are employee benefits payable 
as a result of either the Group’s decision to terminate 
an employee’s employment contract before normal 
retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept 
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

 Recognition - Short–term benefits
 The cost of all short-term employee benefits, such as 

salaries, employee entitlements to leave pay, bonuses, 
medical aid and other contributions, are recognised 
during the period in which the employee renders the 
related service.

 The Group recognizes the expected cost of bonuses 
only when the Group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to make such payment and a reliable estimate 
can be made.

 The Group’s short term employee benefits comprise 
remuneration in the form of salaries, wages, bonuses, 
employee entitlement to leave pay and medical aid.

 Post-employment Retirement Benefit Funds
 Retirement benefits are provided for Group employees 

through an independently administered defined 
contribution fund and contributions  the National Social 
Security Authority (NSSA) Scheme.

 Payments to the defined contribution fund and to the 
NSSA scheme are recognised as an expense when they 
fall due, which is when the employee renders the service.

 Other long –term benefits
 Other long-term benefits are recognised as an expense 

when an obligation arises. The Group had no other long 
term benefit commitments during the year.

 Termination benefits
 The Group recognizes termination benefits as a liability 

and an expense at the earlier of when:
 a) the offer of termination cannot be withdrawn or 
 b) when the related restructuring costs are recognised  

 under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities  
 and Contingents Assets.

 Termination benefits are recognised as an expense 
immediately.

 
 The Group had no termination benefit commitments 

during the year.
 

 Measurement
 Short-term employee benefits
 All short-term employee benefits are measured at cost.

 Post-employment Retirement Benefit Funds
 The Group has no liability for Post-Employment 

Retirement Benefit Funds once the current contributions 
have been paid at the time the employees render service.

 Other long-term benefits
 When the company has other long-term benefits, then 

the amount recognised as a liability shall be the net total 
of the following amounts:

 a) the present value of the defined benefit obligation at  
 the end of the reporting period;

 b) Minus the fair value at the end of the reporting  
 period of plan assets (if any) out of which the  
 obligations are to be settled directly.

 Termination benefits
 Termination benefits are measured according to the terms 

of the termination contract. When termination benefits 
are due more than 12 months after the reporting period, 
then the present value of the benefits shall be determined 
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on high quality corporate bonds.

 Current Versus Non-current Classification
 The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement 

of financial position based on current/non-current 
classification. An asset is current when it is:

 • Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or  
 consumed in a normal operating cycle

 • Held primarily for the purpose of trading
 • Expected to be realised within twelve months after  

 the reporting period, or
 • Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being  

 exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least  
 twelve months after the reporting period

 All other assets are classified as non-current

 A liability is current when:
 • It is expected to be settled in a normal operating cycle
 • It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
 • It is due to be settled within twelve months after the  

 reporting period, or
 • There is no unconditional right to defer the  

 settlement of the liability for at least twelve months  
 after the reporting period
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 The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as 
 non-current assets and liabilities

 Foreign Currency Translation
 The Group’s financial statements are presented in United 

States Dollars, which is the Group’s functional and 
presentation currency. Transactions in foreign currencies 
are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of 
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange 
ruling at the reporting date. All differences arising on 
settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to 
profit or loss with the exception of differences on foreign 
currency borrowings that provide a hedge against a net 
investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly 
to other comprehensive income until the disposal of the 
net investment, at which time they are recognised in 
profit or loss. The tax charges and credits attributable to 
exchange differences on those borrowings are also dealt 
with in other comprehensive income. Non–monetary 
items that are measured in terms of the historical costs 
basis in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rate ruling at the dates of the initial transactions. 
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the 
dates when the fair value was determined.

 Business Combinations
 Recognition
 Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted 

for using the acquisition method. Applying the 
acquisition method requires (a) identifying the acquirer; 
(b) determining the acquisition date; (c) recognizing and 
measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities 
assumed and any non–controlling interest in the 
acquiree; and (d) recognizing and measuring goodwill or 
a gain from a bargain purchase.

 At acquisition – measurement
 The acquisition method of accounting is used to 

account for business combinations by the Group. The 
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a business 
is measured as the aggregate of the fair values (at the date 
of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed 
and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange 
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, 

the acquirer measures the non–controlling interest in 
the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate 
share of the acquiree‘s identifiable net assets. Acquisition 
costs incurred are expensed. The acquiree’s identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet 
the conditions for recognition under IFRS3 (revised) 
are first assessed for appropriate classification and 
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, 
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as 
at the acquisition date and recognised at their fair value 
as at the acquisition date, except for non–current assets 
(or disposal groups) that are classified as held-for-sale in 
accordance with IFRS 5 “Non–current Assets Held-for-
Sale and Discontinued Operations“ which are recognised 
and measured at fair value less costs of disposal.

 If the business combination is achieved in stages, the 
acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously 
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair 
value as at the acquisition date through profit or loss. Any 
contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer 
will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. 
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent 
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability 
will be recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in 
profit or loss or as change to other comprehensive income. 
If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it 
shall not be re-measured until it is finally settled within 
equity.

 At acquisition – measurement of goodwill
 Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess 

of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the 
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and 
any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net 
assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration 
transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly 
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities 
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure 
the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If 
the re-assessment still results in an excess of the fair value 
of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration 
transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

 
 Acquisition of interests from non-controlling interest
 Acquisitions of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 

without change in control are accounted for as 
transactions between shareholders. There is no re-
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measurement to fair value of net assets acquired that were 
previously attributable to non-controlling interests. The 
profit or loss on the transaction is accounted for in equity 
and is not recognised in profit or loss. 

 Leases
 A lease is an agreement in which the lessor conveys to the 

lessee, in return for payment, the right to use an asset for 
an agreed period of time. The determination of whether 
an arrangement contains a lease depends on the substance 
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether 
the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use 
of a specific asset or assets and whether the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the assets. The Group has entered 
into various operating lease arrangements in respect of the 
land used for farming. These agreements do not transfer 
to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits 
incidental to ownership of the leased land.

 Operating lease commitments - Group as a lessee
 Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating 

expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

 Property, Plant and Equipment
 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, excluding 

the costs of day to day servicing, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Such 
costs include the cost of replacing part of the plant and 
equipment. When significant parts of property and 
equipment require replacement in intervals, the Group 
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific 
useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when 
major inspection is performed, its costs are recognised 
in the carrying amount of plant and equipment as 
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in 
profit or loss as they are incurred. The present value of 
the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset 
after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if 
the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Freehold 
property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is 
calculated on a straight line basis over the expected 
useful lives of the assets such that the cost is reduced to 
the residual values of the assets over the useful lives of the 
assets. The various rates of depreciation are listed below:

 Freehold property 2%
 Leasehold improvements 5% - 10% limited to 
  the lease period

 Plant, fittings and equipment 3% - 25%
 Vehicles 10% - 30%

 Freehold properties are company owned buildings 
not built on leased land. Leasehold Improvements 
relate to infrastructure that has been built on the 
leased farms which includes crocodile pens and storage 
barns for inventory. Due to the nature of the leasehold 
improvements these have been assessed to have shorter 
useful lives than freehold property. In addition, the 
depreciation rates are limited to the remaining lease 
period which includes the renewal period. Further details 
of the lease terms have been provided in Note 24.

 The residual values, useful lives and depreciation 
methods of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 
by the Group, and prospectively adjusted if necessary, 
on an annual basis. Depreciation is not charged when 
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment becomes equal or less than the residual value.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising 
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying value 
of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the year the 
asset is derecognised.

 Intangible Assets
 Intangible assets acquired separately are initially measured 

and recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets 
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at 
the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding 
capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and 
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the year in 
which the expenditure is incurred.

 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either 
finite or indefinite.

 Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their 
useful economic lives and are assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets 
are impaired. The amortisation expense and impairment 
losses on intangible assets are recognised in profit or loss 
in the period in which they occur.
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 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not 
amortised, but are tested for impairment annually.

 Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an 
intangible asset are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognised.

 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
 The Group assesses at each reporting date, or earlier, 

whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. This entails estimating the assets recoverable 
amount, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value 
less costs of disposal and value in use. Market values are 
used to determine fair values of assets. Where the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 
is considered impaired and its carrying amount is written 
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing the value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of time, value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit or loss in those expense categories 
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

 At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether 
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer 
exist, or have decreased. If such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount is estimated in order to reverse the 
previously recognised impairment losses. A previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that there has been a change in the estimates used in 
determining the asset’s recoverable amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case 
the asset’s carrying amount is increased to its recoverable 
amount. However, the increased carrying value of the 
asset is limited to the carrying value determinable, net 
of depreciation, had the impairment not occurred. Such 
reversal is taken to the profit or loss statement. After the 
reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future 
periods to allocate the revised carrying amount, less any 
residual value, on a systematic basis over the remaining 
useful life of the asset.

 Biological Assets
 Biological assets are living animals that are managed by 

the Group. Agricultural produce is the harvested product 
of the biological asset at the point of harvest. Thereafter, 
product is classified as inventory. There are two classes of 

biological assets, grower stock and breeder stock.

 The biological assets of the Group comprise of crocodile 
and alligator livestock. At initial recognition, biological 
assets are valued at fair value and where fair value cannot 
be reliably measured they are valued at historical cost. 
Fair value for breeders is determined using the cost 
approach by reference to the prevailing replacement 
cost per unit of inputs required to bring the breeders to 
maturity. 

 Fair value of the grower stock is determined by reference 
to the average theoretical life span of the crocodile and 
alligator stock and the prevailing market prices. The 
stock is evaluated in terms of its respective life span at the 
reporting date and consideration given to the different 
saleable products that could be derived from crocodiles 
and alligators of each age group at the time. On that basis, 
an indicative value is established using the prevailing 
local and international market prices for the respective 
products.

 Fair value movements of the biological assets are 
recognised in profit or loss.

 Fair Value Measurement
 The Group measures non-financial assets such as 

biological assets at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. 
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either:

 • In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
 • In the absence of a principal market, in the most  

 advantageous market for the asset or liability

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible to /by the Group. The fair value of an asset or 
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest.

 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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 The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate 
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

 • Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in  
 active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 • Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the  
 lowest level input that is significant to the fair value  
 measurement is directly or indirectly observable

 • Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which  
 the lowest level input that is significant to the fair  
 value measurement is unobservable

 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial 
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines 
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the 
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has 
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability 
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

 Inventories
 Inventories are assets (i) held-for-sale in the ordinary 

course of the business; (ii) in the process of production 
for such sale; or (iii) to be consumed in the production 
process or the rendering of services.

 The main categories of inventory recognised in the 
financial statements are (i) Finished goods – skins & meat, 
(ii) Raw materials and packaging and (iii) Consumables.

 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated 
net realisable value. In general, cost is established on 
a weighted average basis. Cost represents the cost of 
materials and where appropriate, direct labour and 
manufacturing overheads.

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business less the estimated selling costs 
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make 

the sale.

 Agricultural produce harvested from biological assets 
is measured at fair value less cost to sell at the point of 
harvest. The fair value less cost to sell determined becomes 
the cost of the agricultural produce for subsequent 
measurement

 Financial Assets
 Financial assets include trade and other accounts 

receivable, and cash and cash equivalents. Financial assets 
under the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial 
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair 
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value 
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction 
costs. The Group determines the classification of its 
financial assets on initial recognition.

 All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are 
recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Group 
commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or 
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within the period generally established 
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The 
subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on 
their classification as follows:

 Loans and Receivables
 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets 

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition such 
assets are carried at their amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit 
or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised 
or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. 
Loans and receivables on the Group’s statement of 
financial position comprise trade and other receivables 
and cash and cash equivalents.

 Cash and Cash Equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and 

on hand and short-term deposits/placements with an 
original maturity of three months or less. For the purpose 
of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined above, 
net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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 Impairment of Financial Assets
 The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 

is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, 
there is objective evidence of the impairment as a result 
of one or more events that occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and 
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets 
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment 
may include indications that the debtor or a group of 
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulties; 
default or delinquency on interest or principal payments; 
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganization; and where observable data 
indicate that there is a measureable decrease in the 
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or 
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

 Financial Assets Carried at Amortised Cost
 For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group 

first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment 
exits individually for financial assets that are individually 
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are 
not individually significant. If the Group determines 
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant 
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets 
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively 
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually 
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment 
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a 
collective assessment of impairment.

 If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has 
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding 
future expected credit losses that have not yet been 
incurred). The present value of the estimated future 
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, 
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the 
current effective interest rate.

 The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the 
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues to 
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued 

using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash 
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. 
The interest is recorded as part of financial income in 
profit or loss. Loans together with associated allowance 
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of 
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has 
been transferred to the Group. If in subsequent years, 
the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases 
or decreases because of an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognized, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the 
allowance account. If future write-off is later recovered, 
the recovery is credited to other income in profit or loss. \

 De-recognition of Financial Assets
 A financial asset is recognised de-recognised when either:
 (i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have  

 expired, or
 (ii) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash  

 flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation  
 to pay the received cash flows in full without  
 material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’  
 arrangement; and either (a) the Group has  
 transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of  
 the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred  
 nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of  
 the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

 When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash 
flows from the asset or has entered into a pass–through 
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised 
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement 
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and associated 
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights 
and obligation that the Group has retained. Continuing 
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount 
of consideration that the Group could be required to 
repay.

 Financial Liabilities
 Financial liabilities include trade and other accounts 

payable, bank overdrafts and interest bearing loans 
and these are initially measured at fair value including 
transaction costs and subsequently at amortised cost. 
Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when 
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the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the 
amortisation process.

 De-recognition of Financial Liability
 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

 Offsetting Financial Instruments
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the 

net amount reported in the statement of financial position 
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

 Provisions
 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a current 

legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 
and when it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of 
the obligation can be made. Where the Group expects 
some or all of the provision to be reimbursed, for 
example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement 
is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating 
to any provision is presented in profit or loss net of any 
certain reimbursements.

 If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to those 
provisions. Where discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to passage of time is recognised in profit or 
loss as a finance cost.

 
 Provision for Leave Pay
 Leave pay for employees is provided on the basis of leave 

days accumulated at an expected rate of payment.

 Customer Deposits
 Customer deposits are advances received from customers 

for future delivery of goods. The goods are in the form of 

hatchlings, crocodile and alligator skins. The revenue will 
be realised upon delivery of the goods.

 Taxes
 Current Income Tax
 Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current 

and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from or paid to the relevant tax authorities. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date.

 Current income tax relating to items recognised directly 
in equity or other comprehensive income is recognised in 
equity or other comprehensive income and not in profit 
or loss.

 Deferred Income Tax
 Deferred income tax is provided using the liability 

method on temporary differences at the reporting date 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

 Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences except:

 Where the deferred income tax liability arises from the 
initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability 
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, 
at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

 Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences, carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 
utilized except:

 ‘Where the deferred income tax asset relating to the 
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that 
is not a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss’.

 Deferred income tax relating to items recognised directly 
in equity or other comprehensive income is recognised in 
equity or other comprehensive income and not in profit 
or loss. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income 
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tax liabilities are offset, if legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current income tax 
liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

 Value Added Tax
 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the 

amount of Value Added Tax except:
 • Where the Value Added Tax incurred on purchase  

 of assets or services is not recoverable from the  
 taxation authority, in which case the Value Added  
 Tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of  
 the asset or part of the expense item as applicable; and

 • Receivables and payables that are stated with  
 the amount of Value Added Tax included. 
 • The net amount of the Value Added Tax recoverable  

from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included 
as part of receivables or payables in the statement of 
financial position.

 Operating Segments
 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent 

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker is the 
Group’s Chief Executive.

 Key Management
 Key management includes executive directors and 

divisional management as outlined on pages 3 of the 
annual report.

 Key Estimates, Uncertainties and Judgments
 The following are the key assumptions concerning the 

future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing 
material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year:

 Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and 
equipment

 The Group assesses useful lives and residual values of 
property, plant and equipment each year taking into 
consideration past experience, technology changes and the 
local operating environment. No change to the useful lives 
has been considered necessary during the period. Residual 
values will be reassessed each year and adjustments for 
depreciation will be done in future periods if there is an 
indication of impairment in value. Refer note 12 for the 
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
and the PPE accounting policy note for the useful lives of 
PPE. 

 Fair valuation of Biological Assets – Crocodiles
 The Group assumes that all hatchlings are born on 31 

December every year and that the average theoretical 
lifespan of a crocodile is 35 months. The fair value 
calculation is performed only when the crop reaches 
18 months of age. The skin price used in the fair value 
calculation is that for the average 1st grade price of skins 
prevailing as at year end. A crocodile at slaughter yields 
an average of 3.1kgs of premium quality meat which is 
suitable for sale to the export market.

 Fair valuation of Biological Assets – Alligators
 The Group assumes that all incoming livestock is born on 

1 September every year and that the average theoretical 
lifespan of an alligator is 12 months. The fair value 
calculation is performed only when the crop reaches 
8 months of age. The skin price used in the fair value 
calculation is that for the prices prevailing as at year end. 
An alligator at slaughter yields an average of 2.1kgs of 
premium quality meat.

 Fair valuation of Biological Assets – Breeders
 Fair value for breeders is determined using the cost 

approach by reference to the prevailing replacement 
cost per unit of inputs required to bring the breeders to 
maturity. 

 Refer to note 15 for the carrying amount of biological 
assets and the estimates and assumptions applied in 
determining the fair values of biological assets.
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5.   Acquisition of additional interest in Lone Star LLC

 During the year, the Group and the non- controlling shareholders injected a total capital of $1 000 000 into the subsidiary, 
Lone Star Alligator Farm LLC, with the Group contributing $773 418 and the non -controlling shareholders $226 582.  
After the capital contribution, the Group’s interest in the subsidiary increased by 1.93% from 66.67% before capital 
injection to 68.60 % after capital injection. The non- controlling interest decreased from 33.33% to 31.40%. Below is the 
impact of the change in shareholding as a result of the capital injection on the equity attributable to owners of the parent. 

 Cash injection by non-controlling shareholders                                      226 581
 Increase in non-controlling interest                                             (297 579)
 Loss recognised in equity  (70 998)
     
 On 30 April 2015, the Group acquired additional 16.67% interest in the voting shares of Lone Star LLC, increasing its 

ownership interest to 66.67 %. Cash consideration of $480,000 was paid to the non-controlling shareholder.  Following 
is a schedule showing impact of the increase in shareholding on the equity attributable to owners of the parent;

  
   USD
 Cash consideration to be paid to non-controlling shareholders                                      480 000
 Carrying value of the additional interest in Lone Star LLC                                             (314 052)
 Difference recognised in equity  165 948
     
6. Earnings per share
 Basic earnings per share
 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 

Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in circulation during the period.

 Diluted earnings per share
 Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of 

the Group (adjusted for profit or loss impact of dilutive instruments) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 

 The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:
  
  31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
   US $ US $
 Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 8 948 240 7 255 522
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 541 593 440 541 593 440
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 541 593 440 541 593 440
 Basic earnings per share (US cents) 1.65 1.34
 Diluted earnings per share (US cents) 1.65 1.34

 There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date 
and the date of completion of these financial statements.

6.1 Dividends
 Dividends paid per share are based on the ordinary number of shares in issue on the effective date of declaration and 

entitlement of the ordinary shares to the dividend. The final dividend declared in prior year of 0.41 US cents was paid 
during the current year (2015: 0.29 US cents). No interim dividend was declared.

Notes To The Financial Statements
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 Cash dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid:
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
   US $ US $
 Prior year final dividends 2 226 927 1 594 002
 Current year interim dividends - -
 Total dividends paid 2 226 927 1 594 002

6.2 Dividends   
 Proposed dividends on ordinary shares:   
 Proposed cash dividend for 2016:                                                                                        
 0.83 US cents per share (2015: 0.41 US cents per share)          4 495 226        2 220 533
 On 16 March 2017, the Board declared a final dividend of 0.83 
 US cents per share to shareholders registered in the books of the 
 Company at close of business on the 13th April 2017. 

7 Revenue   
 Sales 27 583 797 25 082 151
 Quality incentive 3 688 915 2 409 386
 Revenue 31 272 712 27 491 537
    
7.1         Other income   
 Export incentive 1 393 460 -
 Sundry income 48 346 46 213
   1 441 806 46 213
 Export incentive relates to the Government grant for 2016; being 5% 
 of export sales for the year awarded in the form of bond notes.

7.2   Operating costs before depreciation and amortisation includes the following charges   
 Costs of goods sold (note 15.2) 9 527 291 7 117 947
 Other operating costs (note 7.2.1) 4 558 266 4 655 224
 Employee benefits expense (note 7.2.4) 6 013 201 5 778 875
   20 098 758 17 552 046
7.2.1 Other operating costs    
 Salt and packaging materials 118 297 154 444
 Fuel and energy 720 449 696 787
 Repairs and maintenance 818 436 818 589
 Rates and Water 67 619 68 148
 Culling expenses 108 477 109 971
 Telephone and postage 147 474 126 038
 Security costs 195 002 196 778
 Other overheads 2 382 512 2 484 469
   4 558 266 4 655 224

 Other overheads include costs related to outsourced services, marketing fees, periodicals and publications, bank 
charges, transport charges, lease fees, insurance, communications, consultancy, research and development activities, 
stationery and veterinary expenses.

  
7.2.2 Audit fees and expenses 
 Current year 133 232  132 928 

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)
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  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
7.2.3 Director emoluments US$ US$ 
 Fees  56 325 56 850
 Salaries 1 321 724 1 257 627
   1 378 049  1 314 477
7.2.4 Employee benefits expense    
 Wage and salaries 5 743 223 5 521 320
 Social security costs 60 908 60 635
 Medical aid  120 485 116 274
 Pension 88 585 80 646
   6 013 201 5 778 875
7.2.5 Exchange loss/(gain)    
 Realised 38 758          (78 535)
 Unrealised 14 728 -
   53 486 (78 535)
  
7.2.6 Operating lease charges included in other operating costs 218 657 196 603
       
7.2.7 Loss/(Profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 977 ( 751)

7.2.8 Write offs    
 Included in cost of sales and other operating costs are:     
 Stock losses written off 36 965 4 267
 Deaths of breeders (note 15.1) 20 763 7 034
8 Interest    
8.1 Interest Income    
 Interest income from  short term investments  1 428 010 289 954
 Interest income from staff loans  15 580 17 952
   1 443 590 307 906
8.2 Interest expense     
 Interest on loans and overdrafts 913 119 857 109
9 Taxation    
9.1 Income tax charge    
 Current income tax charge 2 541 040 1 967 382
 Deferred tax charge (note 10) 97 416 897 408
   2 638 456 2 864 790
9.2 Taxation paid    
 Income tax payable at the beginning of the period  292 829 558 736
 Current income tax charge 2 541 040 1 967 382
 Amount paid (3 072 328)         (2 233 289)
 Current tax (refundable)/ payable (238 459) 292 829
9.3 Reconciliation of rate of taxation   %  %
 Statutory rate of taxation, inclusive of AIDS levy  25.75 25.75
 Effect of expenses not deductible for tax 3.48 0.64
 Effect of exempt income  (2.84) -
 Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years - 2.56
 Effect of different tax rate on foreign subsidiary  (2.49) (0.16)
 Effective rate 23.90 28.79

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)
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  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
10 Net deferred tax liabilities US$ US$
 Reconciliation    
 Opening balance as at the beginning of the period 6 206 596 5 309 188
 Charge to profit or loss (note 9.1) 97 416 897 408
 Closing balance at the end of the period 6 304 012 6 206 596

 Analysis of deferred tax liability     
 Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes  2 739 432 2 607 335
 Fair value adjustments on biological assets  3 663 721 3 344 657
 Deferred (asset) / tax on investment in  foreign operations (102 399) 219 466
 Unrealised exchange loss (3 792) -
 Prepayments  7 050 35 138
   6 304 012 6 206 596

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)
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  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  US $ US $

11 Cash flow information    
11.1 Cash generated from operations    
 Profit before interest and tax   10 509 908 10 499 411
 Adjusted for non-cash items    
 Depreciation 12 1 801 208 1 727 730
 Amortisation of intangible assets 13 15 459 31 565
 Impairment of goodwill 14 - 969 174
 Unrealised exchange loss 7.2.5 14 728 -
 Loss on deaths of biological assets                                                                15.1 20 763 7 034
 Fair value adjustment on biological assets  289 185  (3 242 177)
 Loss /(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment   2 977 (751)
 Inventory write offs  36 965 4 267
 Provisions charged to profit or loss    6 192 47 649
 Cash generated from operations before working capital changes  12 697 385 10 043 902
 Working capital changes     
 Decrease / (increase) in inventories   895 419 (1 110 528)
 (Increase) / decrease in biological assets   (793 672) 1 040 476
 (Increase) / decrease in receivables   (8 071 300) 3 497 123
 (Decrease)/ increase in payables   (308 834) 191 163
     (8 278 387) 3 618 233
 Total cash generated from operations   4 418 998 13 662 136
    
11.2 Dividend paid    
 Dividends declared prior year and paid during the year  2 226 927 1 594 002
 Non-controlling interest share of dividend declared and paid   - -
 Total dividends paid   2 226 927 1 594 002
     
11.3 Cash and cash equivalents    
 Made up as follows:    
 Bank balances and cash on hand  7 910 001 8 425 083 
 Money market short term deposits   2 355 654 2 100 165 
 Cash and cash equivalents   10 265 655 10 525 248

 
 Short-term deposits have been placed at an average interest rate of 6.5 % per annum, maturity period ranges from 3 to 

12 months 

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)
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12  Property, plant and equipment

    Plant,
  Freehold  Leasehold  Fittings & Motor
  Property Improvements  Equipment Vehicles Total
 Cost US $ US $ US $ US $ US $
 At 1 January 2015 2 529 807 14 285 647 3 125 257 1 011 215 20 951 926
 Additions 264 464 1 159 118 605 925 193 327 2 222 834
 Disposals - (1 109) (26 330) (11 667) (39 106)
 At 31 December 2015 2 794 271 15 443 656 3 704 852 1 192 875 23 135 654
 Additions 1 506 563 1 602 645 787 631 242 455 4 139 294  
 Disposals (241 990) - (31 881) (16 451) (290 322)
 At 31 December 2016 4 058 844 17 046 301 4 460 602 1 418 879 26 984 626
  
    Plant,
  Freehold  Leasehold  Fittings & Motor
  Property Improvements  Equipment Vehicles Total
 Depreciation US $ US $ US $ US $ US $
 At 1 January 2015 (172 900) (4 251 920) (1 368 984) (428 005) (6 221 809)
 Disposals - 171 26 036 11 667 37 874
 Charge for the year (98 551) (1 038 460) (387 059) (203 660) (1 727 730)
 At 31 December 2015 (271 451) (5 290 209) (1 730 007) (619 998) (7 911 665)
 Disposals - - 30 882 12 571 43 453
 Charge for the year (78 502) (1 099 128) (389 933) (233 645) (1 801 208)
 At 31 December 2016              (349 953) (6 389 337) (2 089 058) (841 072) (9 669 420)
 Net carrying amount:     
 At 31 December 2015 2 522 820 10 153 447 1 974 845 572 877 15 223 989
 At 31 December 2016          3 708 891 10 656 964 2 371 544 577 807 17 315 206

12.1   Security
 A portion of the Net book value of property, plant and equipment is pledged as security against the Group’s borrowing 

facility. Total assets pledged as security amounts to $2 000 000. Details of the borrowings are shown in Note 19.

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)
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13   Intangible Assets 
  Purchasing Pen Pastel Other
  System Management  Evolution Intangible Total
  US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
 Carrying Amount
 At 1 January 2015 5 733 10 906 32 985 14 375 63 999
 Additions - - - 19 362 19 362
 Amortisation charge for the year (4 698) (8 937) (15 235) (2 695) (31 565)
 Net Carrying amount 31 December 2015 1 035 1 969 17 750 31 042 51 796
 Additions - - - - -  

Amortisation charge for the year (1 035) (1 969)             (6 474)                 (5 981) (15 459)
 Net Carrying amount 31 December 2016 - - 11 276                25 061 36 337

 Intangible assets pertain to computer software. Included in other intangible assets is business intelligence system 
(BI) Software and advanced manufacturing software (Xperdyte). The Group uses the expected usage of the asset to 
determine the useful life of intangible assets. At 31 December 2016, the computer software had an average remaining 
useful life of two years. The business intelligence system and advanced manufacturing software had an average remaining 
useful life of three and half years.

 The Group performed its annual impairment assessment as at 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2016, there were 
no indications of impairment in intangible assets.

14 Goodwill
  31 Dec 2016  31 Dec 2015
  US $  US $
 Opening net book amount -  969 174
 Impairment charge -  (969 174)
 Closing net book amount -  -

    Assessment of impairment of goodwill:
 Goodwill was allocated to the alligator business operating segment. The recoverable amount of the cash generating 

unit of $3,233,445 was determined based on value in use calculations. Budgeted operating cash flows for the Alligator 
business unit were projected and discounted at the group’s weighted average pre-tax cost of capital. The impairment 
calculations performed indicated that the goodwill was impaired. The impairment adjustment was made in the prior 
period. 
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15 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

 Reconciliation of opening and closing carrying amounts

15.1  Non-current biological assets - Breeder Crocodiles and Alligators 
  31 Dec 2016   31 Dec 2015         
  US $          US $
 At the beginning of the period 3 686 179 2 206 960
 Expenditure on non-current biological assets 145 413 135 619
 Fair value adjustment 513 707 1 350 634
 Deaths of non-current biological assets (20 763) (7 034)
 At 31 December 4 324 536 3 686 179

 Breeders are split into two categories as follows: 
 Mature Breeders   
 At the beginning of the period 2 473 347 660 676
 Deaths  (3 694) (5 621)
 Fair value adjustment 382 888 1 364 478
 Transfers from immature breeders 987 453 814
 At 31 December 2 853 528 2 473 347
   
 All costs for the mature breeders are capitalized to the cost of hatchlings as the 
 costs are incurred in order for the breeders to lay eggs.   

  Immature Breeders   
 At the beginning of the period 1 212 832 1 546 284
 Expenditure on non-current biological assets 145 413 135 619
 Fair value adjustment 130 819 (13 844)
 Deaths  (17 069) (1 413)
 Transfers to mature breeders (987) (453 814)
 At 31 December 1 471 008  1 212 832
   
 Expenditure on non-current biological assets relates to feed and other direct costs 
 that are capitalized to immature breeders.   
   
 At 31 December 2016, the Group had the following number of live animals 
 within non-current biological assets:   

  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
 Mature crocodiles 3 654  3 666 
 Immature crocodiles 1 400  1 406 
 Immature alligators 1 174  1 210 
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  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
  US $ US $
 
15.2  Current biological assets – Grower Crocodiles and Alligators 
 At the beginning of the period 26 149 950 25 298 882
 Slaughter (transfer to inventory)  (9 527 291) (7 117 947)
 Births  157 959 189 539
 Expenditure on current biological assets  10 163 016 5 887 932
 Fair value adjustment (802 893) 1 891 544
 At 31 December 26 140 741 26 149 950
  
 At 31 December 2016, the Group had the following number of live animals within current biological assets:
  
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
 Crocodiles 150 172 161 572
 Alligators 23 525 13 425
 
 50% of the crocodiles are aged between 2 to 3yrs. 43,000 crocodiles and 15,121 alligators will be culled in 2017. The 

Group culled 60,697 animals compared to 63,760 last period. Of this total 58,891 were normal contract skins compared 
to 62,555 last year. The foreign operation had no skins in stock at year end, in 2015 it had 7,944 skins in stock.

 A portion of the biological assets has been pledged as collateral against the Group’s borrowing facility with the bank. 
Biological assets pledged as security amounted to $8 000 000. At the end of the period the Group had not utilised the 
facility for the local operations (Note 19).

15.3  Fair Value Disclosures

15.3.1 Valuation Process
 The Group’s Executive Committee determines the policies and procedures for fair value measurement of biological 

assets. The Management Accountant prepares the computation monthly and the information is reviewed by the Finance 
Manager. The Executive Committee verifies major inputs applied to the latest valuation by agreeing the information 
in the computation to contracts and other relevant documents. At the half year and at the end of the year, the Chief 
Financial Officer presents the valuation results to the Audit Committee and the Group’s independent auditors. This 
includes discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuation.

15.3.2 Valuation Technique
 1. The cullable stock of crocodiles and alligators is valued using the income approach. Fair value price is determined   

from the price the Group sells at the point of harvesting to the market.
 2. The breeders are valued using the cost approach. The fair value is determined based on the current replacement    

 costs of a breeder as at year end, being the current costs needed to produce a breeder of similar age, maturity and    
 condition as at the year end.
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Type Valuation technique Significant 
unobservable
Inputs ( Level 3)

Quantitative 
information 
2016

Quantitative 
information 
2015

Crocodiles 
Cullable 
stock

Yearlings, 
Rearings

Income approach. The 
valuation model is 
determined by reference 
to the average theoretical 
life span of the crocodile 
stock and prevailing market 
prices of the skin and meat. 
The fair value is based on 
the value of the skin and 
meat.

Price per 
skin, Quality 
grading, Age of 
crocodiles, Price 
per kg of meat, 
Meat yield per 
crocodile

Price per skin USD 
175 – USD 607, 
Age 1 – 3 yrs, Meat 
Price/kg $0.60 to 
$9.30, Meat yield 
per crocodile 3.1 
kgs

Price per skin USD 
152 – USD 514, 
Age 1 – 3 yrs, Meat 
Price/kg $0.36 to 
$9.50, Meat yield 
per crocodile 3.3 
kgs

Alligators
Cullable 
stock

Yearlings, 
Rearings

Income approach. The 
valuation model is 
determined by reference 
to the average theoretical 
life span of the alligator 
stock and prevailing market 
prices. The fair value is 
based on the value of the 
skin and meat.

Price per skin, 
Quality grading, 
Age of alligators, 
Price per lb of 
meat, Meat yield 
per alligator

Price per skin USD 
112 – USD 369, 
Age 1 – 2 years, 
Price per lb. $1.00 
to $2.25, Meat yield 
per alligator 2.1 kgs

Price per skin USD 
165 – USD 325, 
Age 1 – 2 years, 
Price per lb. $2.00 
to $2.25, Meat 
yield per alligator 
2.1 kgs

Crocodiles  
and
Alligators

Breeders Cost approach. The 
valuation model is 
determined by reference to 
the average theoretical life 
span of the breeding stock 
and current replacement 
cost.

Replacement 
cost of hatching 
plus inputs at 
current costs up 
to maturity age 
of the breeder. 

Replacement cost 
per breeder USD508 
- USD1000, age 7 - 
41 years.

Replacement 
cost per breeder 
USD500-
USD1000, age 7-41 
years.

15.3.4 Fair value hierarchy
 The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of biological assets by the 

valuation technique:
Level 1:  quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2:  other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 

observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3:  techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 

observable market data.

15.3.3 Valuation Inputs
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Fair Value Hierarchy- 31 December 2016 
           Fair value 
   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total gain/(loss)
   US $ US $ US $ US $ US $
Cullable Alligators - -   2 367 433  2 367 433   (754 047) 
Cullable Crocodiles -           -   23 773 308  23 773 308       (48 847)
Breeders (including Alligators) -  - 4 324 536 4 324 536 513 707
Total  -          - 30 465 277 30 465 277 (289 187)

Fair Value Hierarchy- 31 December 2015 
           Fair value 
   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total gain/(loss)
   US $ US $ US $ US $ US $
Cullable Alligators - - 1 556 043 556 043 167 566 
Cullable Crocodiles -           - 24 593 907 24 593 907 1 723 978
Breeders (including Alligators) -  - 3 686 179 3 686 179 1 350 633
Total  -          - 29 836 129 29 836 129 3 242 177

15.3.5  Sensitivity Analysis
 The fair value of cullable crocodiles and alligators is most sensitive to the price and quality of the skin, and to the 

age of the crop. An increase or decrease in the price of the skin will result in an increase or decrease in the fair value 
of the cullable crocodile and alligator stock. An improvement in quality will result in an increase in fair value of 
the cullable crocodile and alligator stock whilst a decrease in quality will result in a reduction in their fair value. A 
change in age profile towards maturity will result in an increase in fair value of the crocodile and alligator stock.

 The fair value of the breeder stock is most sensitive to movements in replacement costs of inputs and to the age 
variation of the animals. An increase in the price of inputs will result in an increase in the fair value of the breeders 
whilst a decrease in the price of inputs will result in a decrease in fair value of the breeders. A change in age 
variation towards maturity will result in an increase in fair value of the breeders. 

15.3.6 Biological assets risk management policies
 Biological assets are live animals that are managed by the Group. Agricultural produce is the harvested product 

obtained from the biological asset. The Biological assets of the Group comprise of live crocodiles and alligators. 
These biological assets are exposed to various risks, which include disease or infection outbreaks, and price 
fluctuations. The Group has put in place measures and controls to mitigate losses from the above risks. These 
measures and controls include, inter alia, a very comprehensive biosecurity program across the operations, 
insurance against theft and unnatural deaths, vaccination to prevent widespread disease and infections, continuing 
comprehensive herd health monitoring programs and formal marketing contracts that include a regular evaluation 
of prices and an assessment of market trends.

15.4   Commitments for the development or acquisition of biological assets
 The Group had not committed itself to acquiring any biological assets as at 31 December 2016 (2015: none).
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  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
   US $ US $
16 Inventories   
 Consumables 891 843 806 892
 Raw materials and packaging  1 689 999 1 137 335 
 Finished goods – skins  1 113 1 575 411 
 Finished goods – meat 7 830  3 541 
   2 590 785 3 523 179 
    
 There were stock losses written off from inventories and recognised as an expense 
 in 2016 of $36,965 (2015: $4,267). There were no inventories pledged as security 
 against borrowings.   
  
   
17 Trade and other receivables   
 Trade receivables 8 016 211 1 854 356 
 Prepayments and other receivables 2 522 762  628 046 
   10 538 973 2 482 402
 Other receivables mainly comprise prepayments and staff loans.
 Trade receivables have been pledged as security against borrowings (refer to note 19).
 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms.
 Credit terms for other receivables vary per transaction, but do not exceed 60 days. 
 As at 31 December 2016, there were no trade receivables that were past due.
 As at 31 December 2016, there was no provision for impairment on other receivables.

17.1    As at 31 December 2016, the age analysis of trade receivables was as follows:
 
      Past due but not impaired
   Neither past due
  Total                nor impaired 30 – 60 days 60 – 90 days More than 90 days
    USD  USD USD USD USD
 2016 8 016 211 8 016 211                 - - -
 2015 1 854 356 1 854 356 - - -

 Trade receivables disclosed above were neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period. The Group has 
not recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because there has not been significant change in credit quality and 
the amounts are considered recoverable. The Group conducts due diligence assessments on the Customers and their 
Directors and on an annual basis credit terms are renewed and are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, 
the balances are monitored on an on-going basis with the result that the receivables are recoverable.

 Note 29.4 on credit risk of trade receivables explains how the Group manages and measures credit quality of trade 
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired.
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18 Ordinary share capital 
    31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
     US$ US$
18.1 Authorised   
 800 000 000 (2015: 800 000 000) ordinary shares of $0.0001 each  80 000 80 000
    
18.2 Issued and fully paid   
 541,593,440 (2015: 541 593 440) ordinary shares of US$0.0001 each  54 159 54 159
 Total issued share capital   54 159 54 159
    
18.3 Unissued shares   
 Unissued, to be held in reserve under control of Directors 
 (258 406 560 shares of $0.0001 each)   25 841 25 841
   
    
18.4 Directors’ shareholding   
 The Directors held directly and indirectly the following number of shares:    
 Oliver Tendai Kamundimu   113 200 113 200
 Gary John Sharp    1 250 000 1 250 000
 Michael John Fowler   112 508 810 112 508 810
    113 872 010 113 872 010
 
 There were no changes in the Director’s interests subsequent to 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report. 

18.5    Share premium of $27 004 245 (2015: $27 004 245) arose on issue of 541 593 440 shares to shareholders of Innscor 
Africa Limited at the date of unbundling and separate listing in 2010.

18.6    Change in ownership reserve arose on acquisition of additional interest in subsidiary. 

 Change in ownership reserve at the beginning of the period   165 948 -
 Increase during the year                                        70 998   165 948
 Change in ownership reserve   236 946 165 948

18.7    Retained earnings 
 Company   27 627 223  20 193 925
 Subsidiaries   (1 484 117) (772 132)
    26 143 106 19 421 793 
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19 Interest-bearing borrowings    
  Rate of Year 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
   Interest repayable US $ US $
19.1 Long-term financing    
 Unsecured  
 Foreign interest-bearing borrowings 6%  -  8% 2018 5 004 705 2 321 833 
 Balance    5 004 705 2 321 833 
     
19.2 Short-term financing    
 Secured Rate of Year    

 Interest repayable
 Foreign short term borrowings 6%  -  12% up to 90 days 3 017 114 1 334 671 
 Balance     3 017 114 1 334 671 
    
19.3 Deferred consideration
  Rate of Year    

 Interest repayable
 Deferred consideration 12% December-2017 425 885 1 366 770 
 Balance     425 885 1 366 770 
     
 Reconciliation of deferred consideration    
 Balance at the beginning of the year   1 366 770  831 680 
 Acquisition of non-controlling interest (note 5)                     -  480 000 
 Payments   (946 582) (113 231)
 Interest     5 697  168 321 
 Balance       425 885 1 366 770 

 The financial liability at fair value relates to deferred consideration discounted at a 12% (fixed rate) market related rate in 
the United States of America and payable in 2017. There were no restrictions noted in the Companies Act with regards 
to this transaction.

 Short term borrowings form part of the core borrowings of the Group and are renewed on maturity in terms of on-
going facilities negotiated with the relevant financial institutions. The facility is secured by first charge over certain of 
the Group’s property, plant and equipment, trade receivables and biological assets with a carrying value of $10 000 000.
The Group has a short-term facility of $11,600,000, rate of interest for local operations is 6%-10% whilst for the foreign 
operation ranges from 6-12%. The facility of $10,000,000 for local operations was not utilized at the end of the period; 
all loans having been paid up. 

 Borrowing powers
 In terms of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Group may, with previous sanction of an ordinary resolution 

of the Group in a general meeting, borrow, on the determination of the Directors, amounts that do not exceed the 
aggregate total equity. The Group is within its borrowing limits.
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    31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
20 Trade and other payables US$ US$
 Trade payables 587 816 358 858
 Other payables : (note 20.1) 1 010 988 1 374 212
  1 598 804 1 733 070
 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days. 
 Other payables are non-interest bearing and have varying settlement terms.   

20.1 Other payables  
  Accruals 962 381 1 367 903
 Sundry creditors 48 607 6 309
   1 010 988 1 374 212

 Accruals mainly relate to employee incentives; outsourced services; audit fees; utilities, periodicals and publication 
costs.

20.2 Customer deposits   
 Non-current  liabilities 1 179 525 1 130 525
    
20.3 Customer  deposits   
 Current liabilities 256 432                        -   
    
 Customer deposits mainly relate to advances received from our main customer to fund the operations of the foreign 

entity. These will be settled through delivery of hatchlings starting in 2017.   
    
21 Provisions    

At the beginning of the period         312 844 265 195
 Arising during the year          283 112  122 835
 Utilised   (276 920)  (75 186)
 As at 31 December 319 036  312 844
 
 All provisions related to leave pay. Employees are being required to take vacation leave to reduce the obligation   
    
22  Contingent Liabilities   
 The Group had no contingent liabilities at 31 December 2016 ( Nil in 2015)   
  
23  Capital expenditure commitments     

Authorised and contracted -  -
 Authorised but not yet contracted  3 640 847  2 454 480
    3 640 847 2 454 480

 The capital expenditure will be for the solar project, new pens and the rebuilding of crocodile and alligator pens. This will 
be financed from the Group’s own resources and borrowing facilities.

   
24. Operating lease arrangements

24.1 Leasing arrangements
 Operating leases include leases of certain buildings and land upon which the Group’s farms are located. The remaining 

lease terms vary between 6 and 10 years with options to renew for periods that range from 10 to 20 years. The depreciation 
on leasehold improvement has taken into account the option for renewal for each operation’s lease.
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  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 
24.2 Payments recognised as an expense US$ US$ 
  Minimum lease payments 218 657 196 603 
     
24.3 Non-cancellable lease commitments   
 Payable within one year 306 157 192 360
 Payable between two and five years 884 632 512 235
 Payable after five years 829 500 468 500
   2 020 289 1 173 095
25  Segmental Information
 Operating segments
 For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on the type of the biological asset raised, 

namely crocodiles and alligators. Segmental reporting based on the type of biological asset provides products or services 
within a particular economic and geographical environment. Crocodile farming is based in Zimbabwe and Alligator 
farming is based in the United States of America. The revenue, operating profit, assets and liabilities reported to the 
board are measured consistently with that in the reported consolidated financial statements.

   
  Crocodiles Alligators Adjustments 
    & Eliminations    Consolidated
         US$        US$        US$        US$
 Revenue    
 31-December-16 27 527 638 3 745 074 - 31 272 712
 31-December-15 25 748 883 1 742 654 - 27 491 537
 Operating Profit/(loss) before impairment, 
 depreciation, amortisation and fair value adjustments    
 31-December-16 12 931 385 (315 625) - 12 615 760
 31-December-15 10 236 379 (250 675) - 9 985 704
    
 Depreciation and amortisation    
 31-December-16 1 699 595 117 072 - 1 816 667
 31-December-15 1 617 013 142 283 - 1 759 296
    
 Interest Expense    
 31-December-16 462 960 450 159 - 913 119
 31-December-15 571 009 286 100 - 857 109
    
 Profit/(loss) before tax    
 31-December-16 12 620 546 (1 580 167) - 11 040 379
 31-December-15 11 430 875 (511 493) (969 174) 9 950 208
    
 Segment assets    
 31-December-16 62 365 212 14 487 203 (5 401 723) 71 450 692
 31-December-15 54 666 762 9 581 919 (2 605 941) 61 642 740
    
 Segment liabilities    
 31-December-16 7 918 046 12 838 172 (2 650 705) 18 105 513
 31-December-15 7 414 433 7 591 181 (306 476) 14 699 138
    
 Capital expenditure 
 (property, plant and equipment & biological assets)     
 31-December-16 2 560 152 1 724 556 - 4 284 708
 31-December-15 1 903 476 474 338 - 2 377 814
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26   Material partly-owned subsidiaries

 The Group holds a 68.60% (2015: 66.67%) interest in Lone Star Alligator Farm LLC, an unlisted company based in 
Texas (United States of America) that specialises in alligator farming. The Group increased its interest by 1.93% with 
effect from 1 July 2016.

 Financial information of a subsidiary that has material non-controlling interest is provided below:

 Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interest:

 Name  Country of incorporation 
   and operation 2016 2015
 Lone Star Alligator Farm  USA 31.40% 33.33%
    
    31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
     US$   US$ 
 Accumulated balances of material 
 non-controlling interest:   380 616 629 353
 Loss allocated to material non-controlling interest:   (546 317) (170 104)

 The summarized financial information for this subsidiary is provided below. This information is based on amounts 
before inter-company eliminations.

     2016 2015  
Summarised statement of profit or loss:      US$   US$ 

 Revenue   3 745 074 1 742 654
 Cost of sales   (3 891 489) (1 519 790)
 Administrative expenses   (585 498) (602 013)
 Fair value adjustment   (697 311) 167 566
 Finance costs   (246 611) (135 199)
 Loss before tax   (1 675 835) (346 782)
 Income tax   - 7 820
 Loss  for the year   (1 675 835) (338 962)
 Total comprehensive income   (1 675 835) (338 962)
 Attributable to non-controlling interests   (546 317) (170 104)
 Summarised statement of financial position:   
 Inventories, biological assets, trade receivables and cash and bank balances (current) 3 590 179 3 675 946
 Property, plant and equipment and biological assets- (non -current )  4 059 352 3 248 317
 Trade and other payables interest-bearing borrowings   (2 065 375) (2 199 452)
 Interest-bearing borrowings (non-current)   (4 371 936) (2 836 755)
     1 212 220 1 888 056
 Total equity   
 Attributable to:   
   Equity holders of parent   831 605 1 258 703
    Non-controlling interest   380 615 629 353

 Summarised cash flow information:
 Operating   (232 034) (609 848)
 Investing   (1 549 273) (474 338)
 Financing   2 331 034 1 081 063
 Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   549 727 (3 123)
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Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)

27 Pension Funds

27.1 Innscor Africa Limited Pension Fund
 This is a self-administered, defined contribution fund. Employees of the Group based in Zimbabwe are eligible to become 

members of the fund. Contributions are at the rate of 14% of pensionable emoluments of which members pay 50%.

27.2 National Social Security Authority Scheme
 The scheme was established, and is administered, in terms of statutory Instrument 393 of 1993. Introduced in 1994, 

the Pension and Other Benefits Scheme is a defined contribution plan based on a 50/50 contribution from the 
employers and employees and are limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time. These are presently 
7% of pensionable emoluments of which the maximum monthly pensionable salary is USD 700. A total monthly 
contribution of USD 49 is therefore the maximum per employee.

    31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
     US $ US $
27.3 Pension costs recognised as an expense for the year:   
 Innscor Africa Limited Pension Fund    88 585  80 646 
 National Social Security Authority Scheme   60 908  60 535 
     149 493  141 181 
 Pension costs are recognised in profit and loss under staff costs.   
    
28 Related party disclosures   
 Related party activities consist of transactions between Padenga Holdings Limited, its subsidiaries, key management 

personnel and other parties that  meet the definition of related party. The transactions between the Company and its 
subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation.   

    
 Details of transactions between Group companies and other related parties are disclosed below:   
    
28.1 Transactions   
 Innscor Africa Limited Pension Fund   88 585  80 646 
     88 585  80 646 

28.2 Compensation of key management personnel   
 The remuneration of Directors and other members of management during the year was as follows:   
 Short-term benefits   2 996 582 2 539 605 
 Post-employment benefits   63 537  54 374 
     3 060 119 2 593 979 

 As at 31 December 2016, Executive Directors owed the company $27,350 (2015: $45,642). Interest is being charged 
at 6%. The movement is disclosed below:

 Opening Balance    45 642   61 332 
 Loans received    22 475   28 062 
 Payments    (40 767)  (43 752)
 Balance    27 350   45 642
 
 Term and conditions of transactions with related parties
 The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 

transactions. Amounts outstanding at the period end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no 
guarantees provided for or received for any related party receivables or payables for the period ended 31 December 2016. 
The Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties.
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28.3   Transactions with directors
 The Group has leased a property from a company in which some of the Directors have either a financial or custodial 

interest. The lease is undertaken on an arm’s length basis.

    31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
    US $ US $
 Lease payments   27 700 25 500

 The Group also has a contract with one of the major shareholder for financial advisory, strategic & marketing activities 
including skin price negotiations.

 Marketing fees  paid    199 500 -

29 Financial risk management objectives and policies
 The Group’s principal financial liabilities  comprise bank loans, trade and other payables and overdrafts. The main 

purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group’s principal financial assets 
include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial 
instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The board reviews and agrees 
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.

29.1 Interest rate risk management
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. The Group invests in money market instruments which are subject to changes in interest 
rates on the local money markets. The Group’s policy is to adopt a non-speculative approach to managing interest rate 
risk and only invests in instruments that are approved by the executive committee. The Group’s policy is to manage its 
interest cost by limiting exposure to overdrafts and where borrowings are required, to borrow at favourable and fixed 
rates of interest.

 The sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax  to changes in interest rates on its material exposures is as  disclosed on 
Note 29.2 below. The Directors, at the reporting date, were not aware of any information or events that may have a 
significant impact on the reported profit and loss of the Group. 

29.2 Interest rate sensitivity analysis
 The following table demonstrates sensitivity to possible changes in interest rates on short and long term borrowings. 

There is an immaterial impact on the Group’s equity.

    31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
 Effect on profit before tax   US$ US$
 Increase of 3%   240 907 136 298
 Decrease of 3%   (240 907) (136 298)

 The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable 
market environment, showing a significantly lower volatility.
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29.3 Foreign currency risk
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises from the sale or 
purchases by the Group in currencies other than the unit’s functional currency. The Group limits exposure to exchange 
rate fluctuations by either pre-paying for purchases or retaining stock until the foreign currency to settle the related 
liability has been secured. The carrying amounts in US dollars of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary 
assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

 31-Dec-16  Liabilities Assets Net exposure
 Currency   
 South African Rand  (325 634) - (325 634)
 Euro  - 351 728 351 728
   (325 634) 351 728 26 094

 31-Dec-15  Liabilities Assets Net exposure
 Currency   
 South African Rand  (214 557) -   (214 557)
 Euro  -  382 388 382 388
   (214 557) 382 388 167 831
   
29.3.1    Foreign currency sensitivity
 The following table demonstrates sensitivity to a reasonably likely change in the Euro and Rand exchange rate, with all 

other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and 
liabilities). The Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. There is no impact 
on the Group’s equity.

    31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
 Effect on profit before tax of change in exchange rate   US$ US$
 + 5% (Rand)   (15 506) (10 217)
 - 5% (Rand)   15 506      10 217
 + 5% (Euro)   17 586 19 119
 - 5% (Euro)   (17 586)      (19 119)

29.4 Credit Risk
 The Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish 

to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on 
an on-going basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions that are not 
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, credit terms are specified contractually within 
the regulations by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe. The Group evaluates its customers on a yearly basis. With respect to 
credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, the Group’s 
exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty. 

  The  maximum exposure  to credit risk  is equal to the carrying amount of the  trade and other receivables(excluding 
prepayments )  and cash and cash  equivalents  as per statement of financial position. The credit risk on liquid funds is 
limited because counter parties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. There 
is a concentration of credit risk as the Group trades mainly with one customer.
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29.5 Liquidity risk
 The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding through a well-managed portfolio of 

short-term investments and/or flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings. The 
Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. Access to sources 
of funding is sufficiently available and debt maturing in the next 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. The 
table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities:

 
  Within          Between    More than
  3 months   4-12 months 12 months
  US$       US$        US$ Total
  2016    
 Liabilities    
 Interest bearing borrowings 1 116 082 2 609 602 5 598 846 9 324 531
 Deferred consideration - 425 885 - 425 885
 Trade and other payables  1 598 804 - - 1 598 804
 TOTAL 2 714 886 3 035 487 5 598 846 11 349 220
 Assets    
 Trade and other receivables(excluding prepayments) 10 434 635 - - 10 434 635
 Cash and cash equivalents 10 265 655 - - 10 265 655
 TOTAL 20 700 290 - - 20 700 290
 2015     
 Liabilities    
 Interest bearing borrowings   88 932 1 396 642 2 804 112 4 289 686
 Deferred consideration     - 1 366 770 - 1 366 770
 Trade and other payables (excluding deposits) 1 733 070 -  -  1 733 070
 TOTAL 1 822 002 2 763 412 2 804 112 7 389 526
 Assets    
 Trade and other receivables 2 345 942 - - 2 345 942
 Cash and cash equivalents (excluding prepayments)  10 525 248  -  - 10 525 248
 TOTAL 12 871 190 -   - 12 871 190

30      Fair value of financial instruments
 The estimated net fair values of all financial instruments excluding interest bearing borrowings, approximates the 

carrying amounts shown in the financial statements.

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)
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31 Capital management
 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to 

support the business and maximize shareholder value.

 The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in the economic environment. 
To maintain or adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital 
to shareholders, or issue new shares. Capital comprises all components of equity excluding non-controlling interests. 
No changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes during the period ended 31 December 2016. The Group 
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as the proportion of net debt (comprising borrowings as offset 
by cash and bank balances) to equity. The target ratio ranges from 5% to 10%.

 
    31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
     US $ US $
 Short term and long term borrowings    8 021 819 3 656 504
 Deferred consideration    425 885 1 366 770
 Trade and other payables    1 598 804 1 733 070
 Less cash and cash equivalents    (10 265 655) (10 525 248)
 Net debt / (cash)   (219 147) (3 768 904)
 Total equity   52 964 564 46 314 249
 Equity and net debt   52 745 417 42 545 345
   
 Gearing ratio   - -

 
32 Events after reporting period
 There were no adjusting or non-adjusting events after the reporting date at the time of issuing this annual report.

33 Approval of financial statements
 The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 16 March 2017.

Notes To The Financial Statements (continued)
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Company Statements Of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2016
  31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
   US $ US $
ASSETS    
Non-current assets   
Property, plant and equipment  13 255 854    12 471 354
Intangible assets 36 337 51 796
Biological assets 3 728 142 3 190 494
Total non-current assets 17 020 333 15 713 644
   
Current assets    
Biological assets  23 773 308     24 098 222
Inventories 2 561 279 1 954 424
Trade and other receivables  9 588 973 2 480 001
Tax asset  238 459 -
Cash and cash equivalents  9 421 319 10 420 471
Total current assets 45 583 338 38 953 118
Total assets 62 603 671 54 666 762
   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Capital and reserves  
Share capital 54 159 54 159
Non-distributable reserves 27 004 245 27 004 245
Distributable reserves                    27 627 223 20 193 925
Share capital and reserves 54 685 627 47 252 329
   
Non-current liabilities    
Deferred tax liability 6 406 412 5 987 131
   6 406 412       5 987 131
Current liabilities    
Other payables 1 511 632 1 427 302
   1 511 632 1 427 302
    
Total liabilities 7 918 044 7 414 433
    
Total equity and liabilities 62 603 671 54 666 762
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As at December 2016
Size of Shareholding Number of Shareholders Shareholders % Issued Shares Share %
1-5000 3 446 0.43 2 338 301 81.87
5001-10000 187 0.26 1 387 340 4.44
10001-25000 167 0.5 2 716 184 3.97
25001-50000 90 0.57 3 076 410 2.14
50001-100000 77 1.04 5 619 902 1.83
100001-200000 75 1.96 10 613 790 1.78
200001-500000 74 4.31 23 342 150 1.76
500001-1000000 30 3.75 20 311 688 0.71
1000001 and Above 63 87.18 472 187 675 1.50
 4 209 100.00 541 593 440 100.00
    
Trade Classification    
Local Companies 547 59.2 320 615 549 13.00
Pension Funds 277 21.27 115 076 542 6.58
Local Individual Resident 3 025 6.36 34 463 344 71.87
Foreign Nominee 17 5.61 30 407 315 0.4
New Non-Resident 61 3.89 21 079 756 1.45
Insurance Companies 32 2.19 11 867 018 0.76
Other Investments and Trust 58 0.63 3 432 207 1.38
Fund Managers 18 0.46 2 505 814 0.43
Charitable and Trusts 94 0.26 1 401 670 2.23
Local Nominee 44 0.12 634 999 1.05
Deceased Estates 30 0.01 79 061 0.71
Banks 1 0 20 250 0.02
Foreign Companies 4 0 9 635 0.10
Government/Quasi 1 0 280 0.02
 4 209 100.00 541 593 440 100.00
    

Top Ten Shareholders

ZMD Investments (Pvt) Ltd   108 458 532 20.03
HM Barbour (Pvt) Ltd   105 872 539 19.55
Stanbic Nominees P/L - NNR   65 695 703  12.13
SCB Nominees   25 570 379  4.72
Sarcor Investments (Pvt) Ltd   22 480 658  4.15
Old Mutual Life Assurance Company (Pvt) Ltd   19 053 700      3.52
Federated Properties (Pvt) Ltd   15 235 945    2.81
Pharaoh Limited - NNR   14 558 953 2.69
National Social Security Authority (W.C.I.F)   11 003 114    2.03
City and General Holdings (Pvt) Ltd   9 822 598     1.81
Other   143 841 319  26.56
   541 593 440  100.00
  

Shareholders Analysis
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Shareholders’ Calendar
Sixth Annual General Meeting 18 May 2017

End of First Half of 2017 Financial Year  30 June 2017

Publication of Interim Report for First Half of 2017 Financial Year  September 2017

End of 2017 Financial Year  31 December 2017

Annual Report Published for 2017 Financial Year    April 2018

Seventh Annual General Meeting   May 2018

Registered Office: Transfer Secretaries:
Padenga Holdings Limited Corpserve Share Transfer Secretaries
121 Borrowdale Road 2nd Floor  ZB Centre
Gunhill  Cnr First Street/Kwame Nkrumah Avenue
Harare   Harare
Zimbabwe  Zimbabwe

P O Box HG 633, Highlands  P O Box 2208
Harare  Harare
Zimbabwe Zimbabwe
                    Tel: +263 4 751559/61 or +263 4 758193
                                Fax: +263 4 752629
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Sixth Annual General Meeting of Padenga Holdings Limited is to be held at the Royal 
Harare Golf Club, 5th Street extension, Harare, on Thursday 18 May 2017 at 08h15, for the purpose of transacting the following 
business: - 

Ordinary Business 

1.  To receive, approve and adopt the Financial Statements and Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2016. 

2.  To elect the following Directors, Mr M. J. Fowler and Mr T. N. Sibanda who retire by rotation in terms of the Articles of 
Association of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. 

3.  To approve Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. 

4.  To re-appoint Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and 
to approve their remuneration for the past audit. 

Special Business 

5.  Approval of Share Buy - Back 

 To consider and, if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification, the following ordinary resolution: “That the 
Company authorises in advance, in terms of section 79 of the Companies Act (Chapter 24:03) and the Zimbabwe 
Stock Exchange (ZSE) Listing Requirements, the purchase by the Company of its own shares upon such terms and 
conditions and in such amounts as the Directors of the Company may from time to time determine and such authority 
hereby specifies that: - 

i.  the authority in terms of this resolution shall expire on the date of the Company’s next Annual General 
Meeting; and 

ii.  acquisitions shall be of ordinary shares which, in the aggregate in any one financial year, shall not exceed 10% 
(ten per centum) of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital; and 

iii.  the maximum and minimum prices, respectively, at which such ordinary shares may be acquired will not be 
more than 5% (five per centum) above and 5% (five per centum) below the weighted average of the market 
price at which such ordinary shares are traded on the ZSE, as determined over the 5 (five) business days 
immediately preceding the date of purchase of such ordinary shares by the Company; and 

iv.  a press announcement will be published as soon as the Company has acquired ordinary shares constituting, 
on a cumulative basis in the period between annual general meetings, 3% (three per centum) of the number of 
ordinary shares in issue prior to the acquisition; and 

v.  if during the subsistence of this resolution the Company is unable to declare and pay a cash dividend then this 
resolution shall be of no force and effect.” 

NOTE: 
 In terms of this resolution, the Directors are seeking authority to allow use of the Company’s available cash resources 

to purchase its own shares in the market in terms of the Companies Act and the regulations of the ZSE, for treasury 
purposes. The Directors will only exercise the authority if they believe that to do so would be in the best interests of 
shareholders generally. In exercising this authority, the Directors will duly take into account following such repurchase, 
the ability of the Company to pay its debts in the ordinary course of business, the maintenance of an excess of assets over 
liabilities, and for the Company and Group, the adequacy of ordinary capital and reserves as well as working capital. 
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6.  Approval of Loans to Directors 

 To resolve as an ordinary resolution, with or without amendments: - “That the Company be and is hereby authorised to 
make any loan to any Executive Director or to enter into any guarantee or provide any security in connection with a loan 
to such Executive Director for the purpose of enabling him to properly perform his duty as an officer of the Company, 
as may be determined by the Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors, provided that the amount of the loan 
or the extent of the guarantee or security shall not exceed the annual remuneration of that Director.” 

Any Other Business 

7.  To transact any other business competent to be dealt with at an Annual General Meeting. 

In terms of the Companies Act (Chapter 24:03), a member entitled to attend and vote at a meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy 
to attend and vote on a poll and speak in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Proxy forms should be 
forwarded to reach the office of the Company Secretary at least 48 (forty-eight) hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 
A.D. LORIMER 
GROUP COMPANY SECRETARY 
121 BORROWDALE ROAD 
GUN HILL 
HARARE 

20 April 2107

 Please visit our website to download the
 Padenga Holdings Limited
 Annual Report for FY 2016
 www.padenga.com
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I / We ________________________________________ of _______________________________________________

being the registered owner(s) of  ______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________ ordinary shares in the above named Company hereby appoint

_____________________________________________ of _______________________________________________

or failing him / her ______________________________ of ________________________________________________
or failing him / her, THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as my / our proxy to vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at 
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday 18th May 2017, at 08.15 hours, and at any adjournment 
thereof.

SIGNED this __________________________________ day of  _______________________________________ 2017

Signature of Member  _____________________________________________________________________________

NOTE: -
1.  A member of the company is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to act in the alternative to attend and vote and 

speak instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the company.
2.  Instruments of proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty eight hours before the 

time appointed for holding the meeting.

The attention of shareholders is drawn to the necessity of keeping the transfer secretaries advised of any change in name and/or 
address. 

Shareholder’s name in full ___________________________________________________________________________

New Address ____________________________________________________________________________________
(Block letters please)
______________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________

Shareholder’s signature _____________________________________________________________________________

Proxy Form – AGM – 18th May 2017

Change Of Address
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Proxy Form – AGM – 18th May 2017

Change Of Address

Registered Office
121 Borrowdale Road

Gun Hill
Harare

Zimbabwe

Registered Office
121 Borrowdale Road

Gun Hill
Harare

Zimbabwe



Harare Office • 121 Borrowdale Road, Gunhill, P.O Box HG 633, Highlands, Harare, Zimbabwe.
 Tel: + 263 4 291 6048 / 291 7745 / 291 6137.

Operations • 135 Lagoon Drive, P.O Box 55, Kariba, Zimbabwe.


